Web Appendix: References to included studies

Note that some articles provide data on more than one experiment.

Contents

Experiments group 1: North American negative income tax experiments in 1960-70s3
New Jersey3
RIME7
SIME/DIME11
Gary Experiment
Mincome
Experiments group 2: Recent European, Canadian and Asian experiments
Finland23
Barcelona
Ontario33
DIW/Mein Grundeinkommen
HartzPlus37
CBI Scotland38
Maezawa (Japan)39
Tilburg39
Nijmegen40
Groningen41
Deventer42
Utrecht43
Wageningen44
Amsterdam45

Almere	46
Apeldoorn/Epe	46
Oss	46
Experiments group 3: Recent US experiments Part 1	47
OpenResearch/Y-Combinator	47
My People Fund	48
Magnolia Mother's Trust	48
Baby's First Years	49
SEED	50
Compton Pledge	53
People's Prosperity St Paul	53
Richmond Resilience Initiative	54
Experiments group 4: Recent US experiments Part 2	54
Oakland Resilient Families	54
Abundant Birth Project (ABP).	55
SF Guaranteed Income Pilot for Artists	55
GIVE	55
Paterson	55
BIG: LEAP	55
Long Beach	56
Old Fourth Ward	56

Experiments group 1: North American negative income tax experiments in 1960-70s

New Jersey

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Bell W. (1976). Work Incentives and Income Guarantees: The New Jersey Negative Income Tax Experiment. *Monthly Labor Review (pre-1986)*, 99(5), pp.60.

Boeckmann M E. (1976). Policy impacts of the New Jersey income maintenance experiment. *Policy Sciences*, 7(1), pp.53-76.

Brodkin E Z and Kaufman A. (2000). Policy experiments and poverty politics. *Social Service Review*, 74(4), pp.507-532.

Burtless G and Greenberg D . (1981). Inappropriate Comparisons as a Basis for Policy: Two Recent Examples from the Social Experiments. *Journal of Public Policy*, 1(3), pp.381-399.

Burtless G and Greenberg D . (1983). Measuring the Impact of NIT Experiments on Work Effort. *Industrial & Labor Relations Review*, 36(4), pp.592.

Camporesi A T. (2018). Universal Basic Income based on evidence. *Politica y Sociedad*, 55(3), pp.851-871.

Chadwick Laura and Volkert Jürgen . (2003). *Making Work Pay: U.S. American models for a German context?*. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Chen Y A and Quiñonez C. (2018). Basic income guarantee: a review of implications for oral health. *Journal of Public Health Dentistry*, 78(1), pp.56-62.

Cogan J F. (1983). Labor Supply and Negative Income Taxation: New Evidence from the New Jersey-Pennsylvania Experiment. *Economic Inquiry*, 21(4), pp.465.

Conlisk John. (1973). Choice of Response Functional Form in Designing Subsidy Experiments. *Econometrica*, 41(4), pp.643-656.

Dickinson Joel R. (1977). Reforming Public Welfare: A Critique of the Negative Income Tax Experiment.Peter H. Rossi, Katharine C. Lyall. *The Journal Of Politics*, 39(3), pp.834-835.

Elesh D and Lefcowitz M J. (1977). The effects of the New Jersey Pennsylvania negative income tax experiment on health and health care utilization. *Journal of Health and Social Behavior*, 18(4), pp.391-405.

Fair J and Freeman A . (1971). The New Jersey/Pennsylvania Graduated Work Incentive Experiment Tax Rebate System. Princeton: Mathematica Policy Research.

Fair J and Kershaw D . (1976). The new jersey income-maintenance experiment: Volume I operations, surveys, and administration. Wisconsin: The Institute for Research on Poverty of the University Of Wisconsin.

Garfinkel I. (1972). The New Jersey income maintenance experiment [designed to estimate the extent to which workers in poor families would be induced to work less by new income maintenance programs]. *Journal of Consumer Affairs*, 6, pp.1-11.

Garfinkel I. (1974). The Effects of Welfare Programs on Experimental Responses. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 9(4), pp.504.

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (202). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Gibson M, Hearty W and Craig P;. (2020). The public health effects of interventions similar to basic income: a scoping review. *The Lancet Public Health*, 5(3), pp.e165-e176.

Gilbert R, Murphy N A and Stepka A; Barrett M; Worku D;. (2018). Would a Basic Income Guarantee Reduce the Motivation to Work? An Analysis of Labor Responses in 16 Trial Programs. *Basic Income Studies*, 13(2), pp.1-13.

Gordon A. (1978). Book review: Reforming Public Welfare: A Critique of the Negative Income Tax Experiment.By Peter H. Rossi and Katharine C. Lyall. New York: Russell Sage Foundation, 1976. 197 pp. \$10.00. *Social Forces*, 57(2), pp.739-740.

Groot L. (2004). Basic Income, Unemployment and Compensatory Justice. Chapter 4: Why Launch a Basic Income Experiment. Boston: Kluwer Academic Publishing.

Groot L F.M. (n.d.). Why launch a basic income experiment? Proposal for a design of a new experiment..: 10th Congress of the BIEN, 2004.

Harris R. (2017). The guaranteed income movement of the 1960s and 1970s. In: Widerquist K, Lewis M A and Pressman S;, ed., *The Ethics and Economics of the Basic Income Guarantee*. : Taylor and Francis, pp.77-94.

Hausman J A and Wise D A;. (1976). The evaluation of results from truncated samples: the New Jersey income maintenance experiment. *Annals of economic and social measurement*, 5(4), pp.421-445.

Heffernan J. (1972). Negative income tax studies: some preliminary results of the graduated-work-incentive experiment. *Social service review*, 46(1), pp.1-23.

Heilig P. (1978). The New Jersey income maintenance experiment: Lessons for Policy Research. *Urban Affairs Review*, 14(1), pp.123-131.

Hollister R G. (1974). The Labor Supply Response Of The Family. *Journal Of Human Resources*, 9(2), pp.223-252.

Hum D and Simpson W. (1993). Whatever happened to Canada's guaranteed income project?. *Canadian Public Administration*, 36(3), pp.442-450.

Institute for Research on Poverty and Mathematica Inc. (1973). *New Jersey Graduated Work Incentive Experiment: Summary Report*. Washington, D.C.: Department of Health, Education, and Welfare.

Johnson W R. (1980). The effect of a negative income tax on risk-taking in the labor market. *Economic Inquiry*, 18(3), pp.395-407.

Johnson MT, Johnson EA and Nettle D; Pickett KE; (2021). Designing trials of Universal Basic Income for health impact: identifying interdisciplinary questions to address.. *Journal of Public Health*, doi:10.1093/pubmed/fdaa255, pp.1-9.

Kershaw D. (1969). The Negative Income Tax Experiment in New Jersey: General Discussion. Princeton: Mathematica Policy Research.

Kershaw D. (197). A Negative Income Tax Experiment. Scientific American, 227(4), pp.19-25.

Kershaw D N. (1972). A Negative-Income-Tax Experiment.. *Scientific American*, 227(4), pp.19-25.

Kershaw D and Skidmore F . (1974). *The New Jersey Graduated Work Incentive Experiment*. Princeton: Mathematica Policy Research.

Larson D. (1992). Long Overdue: The Single Guaranteed Minimum Income Program. *University of Detroit Mercy Law Review*, 69(3), pp.353-380.

Levine R A, Watts H and Hollister R; Williams W; O'Connor A; Widerquist K;. (2004). A Retrospective on the Negative Income Tax Experiments: Looking Back at the Most Innovate Field Studies in Social Policy. USBIG.net: USBIG, Inc.

Lowe C, Grosh M and George T; Gentilini U; (202). What Does It Take to Deliver a Universal Basic Income in Practice?. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*:, pp.217-235.

Lyall K C. (1975). Some Observations On Design Issues in Large-Scale Social Experiments. *Sociological Methods & Research*, 4(1), pp.54-76.

Metcalf C E. (1974). Predicting The Effects of Permanent Programs From a Limited Model. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 9(4), pp.530.

Misztal P. (2019). Unconditional basic income as an instrument for reducing income inequalities. The case of Poland. *Acta Oeconomica*, 69(1), pp.63-79.

Moffitt Robert and Kehrer Kenneth . (1978). Estimating Labor Supply Disincentives of a Negative Income Tax: Some Results and Lessons from the Experiments. Princeton: .

Moffitt R A. (1981). The Negative Income Tax: Would It Discourage Work? . *Monthly Labor Review*, 104(4), pp.23.

Munnell A H. (1987). Lessons from the Income Maintenance Experiments: An Overview - Proceedings of a Conference Held in September 1986.. In: . Boston: Federal Reserve Bank of Boston, pp.1-32. Available at: function URL() { [native code] }.

Neenan WB. (1978). Reforming Public Welfare: A Critique of the Negative Income Tax Experiment. Peter H. Rossi, Katharine C. Lyall. *Social Service Review*, 52(4), pp.665-668.

Neubeck K J and Roach J L;. (1981). Income maintenance experiments, politics, and the perpetuation of poverty [evaluation of the New Jersey Income Maintenance Experiment and the Seattle-Denver Income Maintenance Experiment]. *Social Problems*, 28, pp.308-320.

Newstex . (2017). ValueWalk: Is A Universal Basic Income A Good Idea?. Chatham: Newstex.

Nicholson W and Wright S R. (1977). Participants' understanding of the treatment in policy experimentation. *Evaluation Review*, 1(2), pp.245-268.

Ohls J C. (1980). The power of hypothesis tests in a regression context. *Evaluation Review*, 4(5), pp.623-635.

Pinto A D, Perri M and Pedersen C L; Aratangy T; Hapsari A P; Hwang S W;. (2021). Exploring different methods to evaluate the impact of basic income interventions: a systematic review. *International Journal for Equity in Health*, 20(142), pp.1-20.

Robins Philip K. (1984). The Labor Supply Response of Twenty-Year Families in the Denver Income Maintenance Experiment. *The Review of Economics and Statistics*, 66(3), pp.491.

Robins P K. (1985). A Comparison of the Labor Supply Findings from the Four Negative Income Tax Experiments. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 20(4), pp.567.

Rohrlich G F. (1976). Work Incentives and Income Guarantees: The New Jersey Negative Income Tax Experiment. Joseph A. Pechman , P. Michael Timpane. *Social Service Review*, 50(4), pp.660-662.

Rose H. (1968). *An Experimental Study of the Negative Income Tax*. Princeton: Mathematica Policy Research.

Ross H. (1970). An experimental study of the negative income tax [interim report on results of a three-year experimental program in five New Jersey and Pennsylvania cities; conference paper; with discussion by Leonard S. Kogan]. *Child Welfare*, 49, pp.562-572.

Rossi P H and Rosenbaum S W;. (1983). First Negative Income Tax Experiment: A Giant Forward Step. *Free Inquiry In Creative Sociology*, 11(2), pp.121-128.

Ruckert A, Huynh C and Labonté R; (2018). Reducing health inequities: Is universal basic income the way forward?. *Journal of Public Health (United Kingdom)*, 40(1), pp.3-7.

Salkind N J and Haskins R. (1982). Negative Income Tax: The Impact on Children from Low-Income Families. *Journal of Family Issues*, 3(2), pp.165-180.

Schneiderman L. (1976). Work Incentives and Income Guarantees: The New Jersey Negative Income Tax Experiment. Edited by Joseph A. Pechman and P. Michael Timpane. Washington,

D.C.: The Brookings Institution, 1975. 232 pp. \$9.95 cloth, \$3.50 paper. *Social Work*, 21(3), pp.245-245.

Specianova Jitka. (2018). Labor Supply Elasticity in the Unconditional Basic Income System: Data Sources and Methodological Issues. *European Scientific Journal and ESJ*, 14(4), pp.13-13.

Stryker S. (1976). Large-scale, longitudinal policy research: Promise, problems and payoff. *Sociological Focus*, 9(1), pp.99-105.

Cain G. (1974). Symposium on the Graduated work incentive experiment . *Journal of Human Resources*, 9, pp.155-278.

Torry M. (2021). Do We Need Basic Income Experiments?. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.39-54.

Widerquist K. (2002). A Failure to Communicate: The Labour Market Findings of the Negative Income Tax Experiments and Their Effects on Policy and Public Opinion. Geneva: BIEN 9th International Congress, September 12th-14th.

Widerquist K. (2005). A failure to communicate: What (if anything) can we learn from the negative income tax experiments?. *Journal of Socio-Economics*, 34(1), pp.49-81.

Widerquist K. (2006). The Bottom Line in a Basic Income Experiment. *Basic Income Studies*, 1(2), pp.1-5.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers, Policymakers, and Citizens, Exploring the Basic Income Guarantee. Chapter 6:BIG Experiments of the 1970s and the Public Reaction to Them. Cham: Palgrave Pivot.

Widerquist K. (2021). Further reflections on basic income experiments. *Ethical Perspectives*, 28(1), pp.103-115.

Williams Walter. (1975). The continuing struggle for a negative income-tax - a review article. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 10(4), pp.427.

Wright S. (1975). Work Response to Income Maintenance: Economic, Sociological, and Cultural Perspectives. *SOCIAL FORCES*, 53(4), pp.553-562.

Young C. (2018). Realising basic income experiments in the UK: a typology and toolkit of basic income design and delivery. London: RSA Action and Research Centre.

RIME

Ashenfelter O. (1977). The Labor Supply Response of Wage Earners in the Rural Negative Income Tax Experiment. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Bawden D L. (1971). Implications of a negative income tax for rural people. *American Journal of Agricultural Economics*, 53(5), pp.754-760.

Bawden D L and Harrar W S;. (1977). Purpose and Design of the Rural Income Maintenance Experiment. *American Journal Of Agricultural Economics*, 59(5), pp.855-858.

Bryant K W. (1986). A portfolio analysis of poor rural wage-working families assets and debts. *American Journal of Agricultural Economics*, 68(2), pp.237-245.

Burtless G and Greenberg D . (1981). Inappropriate Comparisons as a Basis for Policy: Two Recent Examples from the Social Experiments. *Journal of Public Policy*, 1(3), pp.381-399.

Camporesi A T. (2018). Universal Basic Income based on evidence. *Politica y Sociedad*, 55(3), pp.851-871.

Chadwick Laura and Volkert Jürgen . (2003). *Making Work Pay: U.S. American models for a German context?*. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Chang H. (1979). Review 5 -- No Title. Southern Economic Journal (pre-1986), 46(1), pp.313.

Chen Y A and Quiñonez C. (2018). Basic income guarantee: a review of implications for oral health. *Journal of Public Health Dentistry*, 78(1), pp.56-62.

Debertin D L and Infanger C L;. (1988). Rural Poverty, Welfare Eligibility, Farm Programs, and the Negative Income Tax. *Review of Policy Research*, 7(4), pp.828-849.

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (202). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Gibson M, Hearty W and Craig P;. (2020). The public health effects of interventions similar to basic income: a scoping review. *The Lancet Public Health*, 5(3), pp.e165-e176.

Gilbert R, Murphy N A and Stepka A; Barrett M; Worku D;. (2018). Would a Basic Income Guarantee Reduce the Motivation to Work? An Analysis of Labor Responses in 16 Trial Programs. *Basic Income Studies*, 13(2), pp.1-13.

Harris R. (2017). The guaranteed income movement of the 1960s and 1970s. In: Widerquist K, Lewis M A and Pressman S;, ed., *The Ethics and Economics of the Basic Income Guarantee.*: Taylor and Francis, pp.77-94.

Heffernan J. (1972). Negative income tax studies: some preliminary results of the graduated-work-incentive experiment. *Social service review*, 46(1), pp.1-23.

Hum D and Simpson W . (1993). Whatever happened to Canada's guaranteed income project?. *Canadian Public Administration*, 36(3), pp.442-450.

Johnson MT, Johnson EA and Nettle D; Pickett KE; (2021). Designing trials of Universal Basic Income for health impact: identifying interdisciplinary questions to address.. *Journal of Public Health*, doi:10.1093/pubmed/fdaa255, pp.1-9.

Kerachsky S H. (1977). Farm and Off-Farm Work Decisions. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Kerachsky S H. (1977). Labor Supply Decisions of Farm Families. *American Journal Of Agricultural Economics*, 59(5), pp.869-876.

Larson D. (1992). Long Overdue: The Single Guaranteed Minimum Income Program. *University of Detroit Mercy Law Review*, 69(3), pp.353-380.

Lele U. (1979). Welfare in Rural Areas: The North Carolina-Iowa Income Maintenance Experiment. *Finance & Development (pre-1986)*, 16(000002), pp.43.

Levine R A, Watts H and Hollister R; Williams W; O'Connor A; Widerquist K;. (2004). A Retrospective on the Negative Income Tax Experiments: Looking Back at the Most Innovate Field Studies in Social Policy. USBIG.net: USBIG, Inc.

Lowe C, Grosh M and George T; Gentilini U; (202). What Does It Take to Deliver a Universal Basic Income in Practice? In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R; ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*:, pp.217-235.

Maxwell N. (1972). No strings: in a novel experiment, some rural poor get a guaranteed income [242 families in Duplin county, N.C.]. *Wall Street Journal*, 180, pp.1.

Maynard R A. (1977). The effects of the rural income maintenance experiment on the school performance of children. *American economic review*, 67(1), pp.370-375.

Maynard R A and Murnane R J;. (1979). The Effects of a Negative Income Tax on School Performance: Results of an Experiment. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 14(4), pp.463.

Misztal P. (2019). Unconditional basic income as an instrument for reducing income inequalities. The case of Poland. *Acta Oeconomica*, 69(1), pp.63-79.

Moffitt Robert and Kehrer Kenneth . (1978). Estimating Labor Supply Disincentives of a Negative Income Tax: Some Results and Lessons from the Experiments. Princeton: .

Moffitt R A. (1981). The Negative Income Tax: Would It Discourage Work? . *Monthly Labor Review*, 104(4), pp.23.

Munnell A H. (1987). Lessons from the Income Maintenance Experiments: An Overview - Proceedings of a Conference Held in September 1986.. In: . Boston: Federal Reserve Bank of Boston, pp.1-32. Available at: function URL() { [native code] }.

Newstex . (2017). ValueWalk: Is A Universal Basic Income A Good Idea?. Chatham: Newstex.

O'Connor J F and Madden J P;. (1979). The negative income tax and the quality of dietary intake.. *The Journal of human resources*, 14(4), pp.507-517.

Palmer J L and Pechman J A;. (1978). Welfare in rural areas: the North Carolina-Iowa income maintenance experiment. Princeton: Brookings Instn.

Pinto A D, Perri M and Pedersen C L; Aratangy T; Hapsari A P; Hwang S W;. (2021). Exploring different methods to evaluate the impact of basic income interventions: a systematic review. *International Journal for Equity in Health*, 20(142), pp.1-20.

Robins Philip K. (1984). The Labor Supply Response of Twenty-Year Families in the Denver Income Maintenance Experiment. *The Review of Economics and Statistics*, 66(3), pp.491.

Robins P K. (1985). A Comparison of the Labor Supply Findings from the Four Negative Income Tax Experiments. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 20(4), pp.567.

Ruckert A, Huynh C and Labonté R; (2018). Reducing health inequities: Is universal basic income the way forward? *Journal of Public Health (United Kingdom)*, 40(1), pp.3-7.

Salkind N J and Haskins R. (1982). Negative Income Tax: The Impact on Children from Low-Income Families. *Journal of Family Issues*, 3(2), pp.165-180.

Saupe WE. (1977). The effect of an experimental negative income tax on farm business decisions and financial management.: American Agricultural Economics Association (New Name 2008: Agricultural and Applied Economics Association), pp.. Available at: function URL() { [native code] }.

Specianova Jitka. (2018). Labor Supply Elasticity in the Unconditional Basic Income System: Data Sources and Methodological Issues. *European Scientific Journal and ESJ*, 14(4), pp.13-13.

Stryker S. (1976). Large-scale, longitudinal policy research: Promise, problems and payoff. *Sociological Focus*, 9(1), pp.99-105.

Institute for Research on Poverty. (1976). *The rural income maintenance experiment: summary report.* Madison: University of Wisconsin.

Torry M. (2021). Do We Need Basic Income Experiments?. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.39-54.

Widerquist K. (2002). A Failure to Communicate: The Labour Market Findings of the Negative Income Tax Experiments and Their Effects on Policy and Public Opinion. Geneva: BIEN 9th International Congress, September 12th-14th.

Widerquist K. (2005). A failure to communicate: What (if anything) can we learn from the negative income tax experiments?. *Journal of Socio-Economics*, 34(1), pp.49-81.

Widerquist K. (2006). The Bottom Line in a Basic Income Experiment. *Basic Income Studies*, 1(2), pp.1-5.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers, Policymakers, and Citizens, Exploring the Basic Income Guarantee. Chapter 6:BIG Experiments of the 1970s and the Public Reaction to Them. Cham: Palgrave Pivot.

Widerquist K. (2021). Further reflections on basic income experiments. *Ethical Perspectives*, 28(1), pp.103-115.

Young C. (2018). Realising basic income experiments in the UK: a typology and toolkit of basic income design and delivery. London: RSA Action and Research Centre.

SIME/DIME

Alaouze C M. (1987). Empirical evidence on the sign of the slope of the hazard rate from unemployment from a fixed effects model. *Journal of Applied Econometrics*, 2(2), pp.159-168.

Ashenfelter Orley and Plant Mark W. (1990). Nonparametric Estimates of the Labor-Supply Effects of Negative Income Tax Programs. *Journal of Labor Economics*, 8(1), pp.20.

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Brodkin E Z and Kaufman A. (2000). Policy experiments and poverty politics. *Social Service Review*, 74(4), pp.507-532.

Burtless G and Greenberg D . (1981). Inappropriate Comparisons as a Basis for Policy: Two Recent Examples from the Social Experiments. *Journal of Public Policy*, 1(3), pp.381-399.

Burtless G and Greenberg D . (1982). Inferences concerning labor supply behavior based on limited-duration experiments. *AMERICAN ECONOMIC REVIEW*, 72(3), pp.488-497.

Burtless G and Greenberg D. (1983). Measuring the Impact of NIT Experiments on Work Effort. *Industrial & Labor Relations Review*, 36(4), pp.592.

Burtless G and Havenman RH . (1984). Policy lessons from three labor market experiments. Employment and training R&D lessons learned and future directions conference proceedings of the National Council on Employment Policy. : .

Cain Glen G and Wissoker Douglas A;. (1990). A Reanalysis of Marital Stability in the Seattle-Denver Income-Maintenance Experiment. *The American Journal of Sociology*, 95(5), pp.1235.

Camporesi A T. (2018). Universal Basic Income based on evidence. *Politica y Sociedad*, 55(3), pp.851-871.

Cantillon S and McLean C . (2016). Basic income guarantee: The gender impact within households. Journal of Sociology and Social Welfare, 43(3), pp.97-120.

Chadwick Laura and Volkert Jürgen . (2003). *Making Work Pay: U.S. American models for a German context?*. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Chen Y A and Quiñonez C. (2018). Basic income guarantee: a review of implications for oral health. *Journal of Public Health Dentistry*, 78(1), pp.56-62.

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (202). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Gibson M, Hearty W and Craig P;. (2020). The public health effects of interventions similar to basic income: a scoping review. *The Lancet Public Health*, 5(3), pp.e165-e176.

Gilbert R, Murphy N A and Stepka A; Barrett M; Worku D;. (2018). Would a Basic Income Guarantee Reduce the Motivation to Work? An Analysis of Labor Responses in 16 Trial Programs. *Basic Income Studies*, 13(2), pp.1-13.

Groeneveld Lyle P and Tuma Nancy Brandon; Hannan Michael T;. (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: The Effects of Negative Income Tax Programs on Marital Dissolution. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.654.

Hall Arden R. (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: The Counseling and Training Subsidy Treatments. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.591.

Hannan Michael T and Tuma Nancy Brandon; Groeneveld Lyle P;. (1977). Income and marital events: evidence from an income-maintenance experiment. *American journal of sociology*, 82(6), pp.1186-1211.

Hannan Michael T and Tuma Nancy Brandon;. (1990). A Reassessment of the Effect of Income Maintenance on Marital Dissolution in the Seattle-Denver Experiment. *The American Journal of Sociology*, 95(5), pp.1270.

Harris R. (2017). The guaranteed income movement of the 1960s and 1970s. In: Widerquist K, Lewis M A and Pressman S;, ed., *The Ethics and Economics of the Basic Income Guarantee*.: Taylor and Francis, pp.77-94.

Hasdell R. (2020). What we know about universal basic income a cross-synthesis of reviews. Stanford: Stanford BI Lab.

Hum D and Simpson W . (1993). Whatever happened to Canada's guaranteed income project?. *Canadian Public Administration*, 36(3), pp.442-450.

Investor's Business Daily. (2018). Chicago's Next Really Bad Idea: A Guaranteed Basic Income. *Investor's Business Daily*, , pp..

Johnson Terry R and Pencavel John H;. (1982). Forecasting the Effects of a Negative Income Tax Program. *Industrial & Labor Relations Review*, 35(2), pp.221.

Johnson MT, Johnson EA and Nettle D; Pickett KE; (2021). Designing trials of Universal Basic Income for health impact: identifying interdisciplinary questions to address.. *Journal of Public Health*, doi:10.1093/pubmed/fdaa255, pp.1-9.

Keeley Michael C and Robins Philip K; Spiegelman Robert G; et al. (1978). The Estimation of Labor Supply Models Using Experimental Data. *The American Economic Review*, 68(5), pp.873.

Keeley M C and Robins P K; Spiegelman R G; West R W;. (1978). The labor-supply effects and costs of alternative negative income tax programs. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 13(1), pp.3.

Keeley M and Robins P. (1979). Work Incentives and the Negative Income Tax. *Challenge*, 22(1), pp.52.

Keeley M C. (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: The Effects of Negative Income Tax Programs on Fertility. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.675.

Keeley M C and Robins P K;. (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: Experimental Design, The Conlisk-Watts Assignment Model, and the Proper Estimation of Behavioral Response. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.480.

Keeley Michael C. (1980). Migration as consumption: the impact of alternative negative income tax program. *Research in population economics*, 2, pp.401-432.

Keeley Michael C. (1987). The Effects of Experimental Negative Incoome Tax Programs o. *International Economic Review*, 28(1), pp.241.

Kiefer N M. (1988). Employment contracts, job search theory, and labour turnover: Preliminary empirical: Results. *Journal of Applied Econometrics*, 3(3), pp.169-186.

Krupka E. (2009). Eliciting Subjective Discount Rates: Monthly Patterns of Impatience Among the Very Poor. Urbana: Association for Consumer Research.

Kurz M and Spiegelman R G. (1971). The Seattle Experiment: The Combined Effect of Income Maintenance and Manpower Investments. *The American Economic Review*, 61(2), pp.22.

Larson D. (1992). Long Overdue: The Single Guaranteed Minimum Income Program. *University of Detroit Mercy Law Review*, 69(3), pp.353-380.

Levine R A, Watts H and Hollister R; Williams W; O'Connor A; Widerquist K;. (2004). A Retrospective on the Negative Income Tax Experiments: Looking Back at the Most Innovate Field Studies in Social Policy. USBIG.net: USBIG, Inc.

Lowe C, Grosh M and George T; Gentilini U; (202). What Does It Take to Deliver a Universal Basic Income in Practice?. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*:, pp.217-235.

Lundberg S. (1988). Labor Supply of Husbands and Wives: A Simultaneous Equations Approach. *The Review of Economics and Statistics*, 70(2), pp.224.

MaCurdy T E. (1981). An Intertemporal Analysis of Taxation and Work Disincentives: An Analysis of the Denver Income Maintenance Experiment. Cambridge: National Bureau of Economic Research, Inc.

MaCurdy T E. (1983). A Simple Scheme for Estimating an Intertemporal Model of Labor Supply and Consumption in the Presence of Taxes and Uncertainty. *International Economic Review*, 24(2), pp.265.

Misztal P. (2019). Unconditional basic income as an instrument for reducing income inequalities. The case of Poland. *Acta Oeconomica*, 69(1), pp.63-79.

Moffitt Robert and Kehrer Kenneth . (1978). Estimating Labor Supply Disincentives of a Negative Income Tax: Some Results and Lessons from the Experiments. Princeton: .

Moffitt R A. (1981). The Negative Income Tax: Would It Discourage Work? . *Monthly Labor Review*, 104(4), pp.23.

Munnell A H. (1987). Lessons from the Income Maintenance Experiments: An Overview - Proceedings of a Conference Held in September 1986.. In: . Boston: Federal Reserve Bank of Boston, pp.1-32. Available at: function URL() { [native code] }.

Neubeck K J and Roach J L;. (1981). Income maintenance experiments, politics, and the perpetuation of poverty [evaluation of the New Jersey Income Maintenance Experiment and the Seattle-Denver Income Maintenance Experiment]. *Social Problems*, 28, pp.308-320.

Newstex . (2016). ValueWalk: The Numbers Are In And Cash Transfers Don't Work. *Newstex Global Business Blogs*, , pp..

Newstex . (2016). Distressed Volatility: Canada To Experiment With Basic Income. Chatham: Newstex.

Newstex . (2017). ValueWalk: Is A Universal Basic Income A Good Idea?. Chatham: Newstex.

Ohls J C. (1980). The power of hypothesis tests in a regression context. *Evaluation Review*, 4(5), pp.623-635.

Pinto A D, Perri M and Pedersen C L; Aratangy T; Hapsari A P; Hwang S W;. (2021). Exploring different methods to evaluate the impact of basic income interventions: a systematic review. *International Journal for Equity in Health*, 20(142), pp.1-20.

Plant Mark W. (1984). An Empirical Analysis of Welfare Dependence. *The American Economic Review*, 74(4), pp.673.

Plotnick Robert. (1983). Turnover in the AFDC Population: An Event History Analysis. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 18(1), pp.65.

Riddell C and Riddell W C. (2021). Welfare versus work under a negative income tax: Evidence from the Gary, Seattle, Denver and Manitoba income maintenance experiments. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Robins Philip K and West Richard W;. (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: Labor Supply Response Over Time. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.524.

Robins Philip K and West Richard W;. (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: Program Participation and Labor-Supply Response. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.499.

Robins Philip K. (1980). A guaranteed annual income: evidence from a social experiment. : Academic Press, Inc..

Robins Philip K and Tuma Nancy Brandon; Yaeger K E;. (1980). Effects of SIME/DIME on Changes in Employment Status. *Journal Of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.545-573.

Robins Philip K. (1984). The Labor Supply Response of Twenty-Year Families in the Denver Income Maintenance Experiment. *The Review of Economics and Statistics*, 66(3), pp.491.

Robins P K. (1985). A Comparison of the Labor Supply Findings from the Four Negative Income Tax Experiments. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 20(4), pp.567.

Rogers J M. (1986). Income Maintenance Experimentation and Welfare Policy: The Role of Value Conflict in Research Utilization. *Science Communication*, 8(2), pp.323-348.

Salkind N J and Haskins R. (1982). Negative Income Tax: The Impact on Children from Low-Income Families. *Journal of Family Issues*, 3(2), pp.165-180.

Specianova Jitka. (2018). Labor Supply Elasticity in the Unconditional Basic Income System: Data Sources and Methodological Issues. *European Scientific Journal and ESJ*, 14(4), pp.13-13.

Spiegelman Robert G and Yaeger K E;. (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: Overview. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.463.

Stephens M. (2007). Are there treatment duration differences in the Seattle and Denver income maintenance experiments?. *B.E. Journal of Economic Analysis and Policy*, 7(1), pp..

Stryker S. (1976). Large-scale, longitudinal policy research: Promise, problems and payoff. *Sociological Focus*, 9(1), pp.99-105.

Thoits P and Hannan M . (1979). Income and psychological distress: the impact of an incomemaintenance experiment.. *Journal of health and social behavior*, 20(2), pp.120-38.

Torry M. (2021). Do We Need Basic Income Experiments?. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.39-54.

US Department of Health and Human Services. (1983). *Overview of the Final Report of the Seattle-Denver Income Maintenance Experiment*. : US Department of Health and Human Services.

Weiss Yoram, Hall Arden and Dong Fred; (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: The Effect of Price and Income on Investment in Schooling. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.611.

West Richard W. (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: The Effects on the Labor Supply of Young Nonheads. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.574.

West Richard W. (1980). The Seattle and Denver Income Maintenance Experiments: Effects on Wage Rates-An Interim Analysis. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 15(4), pp.641.

Widerquist K. (2002). A Failure to Communicate: The Labour Market Findings of the Negative Income Tax Experiments and Their Effects on Policy and Public Opinion. Geneva: BIEN 9th International Congress, September 12th-14th.

Widerquist K. (2005). A failure to communicate: What (if anything) can we learn from the negative income tax experiments?. *Journal of Socio-Economics*, 34(1), pp.49-81.

Widerquist K. (2006). The Bottom Line in a Basic Income Experiment. *Basic Income Studies*, 1(2), pp.1-5.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers, Policymakers, and Citizens, Exploring the Basic Income Guarantee. Chapter 6:BIG Experiments of the 1970s and the Public Reaction to Them. Cham: Palgrave Pivot.

Widerquist K. (2021). Further reflections on basic income experiments. *Ethical Perspectives*, 28(1), pp.103-115.

Young C. (2018). Realising basic income experiments in the UK: a typology and toolkit of basic income design and delivery. London: RSA Action and Research Centre.

Gary Experiment

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Burtless G and Hausman J A. (1977). The Effect of Taxation on Labor Supply: Evaluating the Gary Negative Income Tax Experiment. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Burtless G and Greenberg D . (1981). Inappropriate Comparisons as a Basis for Policy: Two Recent Examples from the Social Experiments. *Journal of Public Policy*, 1(3), pp.381-399.

Chen Y A and Quiñonez C. (2018). Basic income guarantee: a review of implications for oral health. *Journal of Public Health Dentistry*, 78(1), pp.56-62.

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (202). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Gibson M, Hearty W and Craig P; (2020). The public health effects of interventions similar to basic income: a scoping review. *The Lancet Public Health*, 5(3), pp.e165-e176.

Gilbert R, Murphy N A and Stepka A; Barrett M; Worku D;. (2018). Would a Basic Income Guarantee Reduce the Motivation to Work? An Analysis of Labor Responses in 16 Trial Programs. *Basic Income Studies*, 13(2), pp.1-13.

Greenberg D, Moffitt R and Friedmann J;. (1981). Underreporting and Experimental Effects on Work Effort: Evidence from the Gary Income Maintenance Experiment. *The Review of Economics and Statistics*, 63(4), pp.581.

Harris R. (2017). The guaranteed income movement of the 1960s and 1970s. In: Widerquist K, Lewis M A and Pressman S;, ed., *The Ethics and Economics of the Basic Income Guarantee*. : Taylor and Francis, pp.77-94.

Hausman J A and Wise D A;. (1979). Attrition Bias in Experimental and Panel Data: The Gary Income Maintenance Experiment. *Econometrica (pre-1986)*, 47(2), pp.455.

Hum D and Simpson W . (1993). Whatever happened to Canada's guaranteed income project?. *Canadian Public Administration*, 36(3), pp.442-450.

Johnson MT, Johnson EA and Nettle D; Pickett KE; (2021). Designing trials of Universal Basic Income for health impact: identifying interdisciplinary questions to address.. *Journal of Public Health*, doi:10.1093/pubmed/fdaa255, pp.1-9.

Kaluzny R L. (1979). Changes in the Consumption of a Housing Services: The Gary Experiment. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 14(4), pp.496.

Kehrer K. (1977). Findings from the Gary Income Maintenance Experiment: Testimony Before the House Committee on Ways and Means. Princeton: Mathematica Policy Research.

Kehrer K C, Stephenson S P and Jr;. (1978). *The Gary Experiment in Welfare Reform*. Bloomington: Indiana University, School of Business.

Kehrer B H and Wolin C M;. (1979). Impact of income maintenance on low birth weight: evidence from the Gary Experiment.. *The Journal of human resources*, 14(4), pp.434-462.

Kelly T F and Singer L. (1971). The Gary Income Maintenance Experiment: Plans and Progress. *The American Economic Review*, 61(2), pp.30.

Larson D. (1992). Long Overdue: The Single Guaranteed Minimum Income Program. *University of Detroit Mercy Law Review*, 69(3), pp.353-380.

Levine R A, Watts H and Hollister R; Williams W; O'Connor A; Widerquist K;. (2004). A Retrospective on the Negative Income Tax Experiments: Looking Back at the Most Innovate Field Studies in Social Policy. USBIG.net: USBIG, Inc.

Lowe C, Grosh M and George T; Gentilini U; (202). What Does It Take to Deliver a Universal Basic Income in Practice?. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*:, pp.217-235.

Maynard R A and Murnane R J;. (1979). The Effects of a Negative Income Tax on School Performance: Results of an Experiment. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 14(4), pp.463.

McDonald J F, Stephenson S P and Jr;. (1979). The Effect of Income Maintenance on the School-Enrollment and Labor-Supply Decisions of Teenagers. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 14(4), pp.488.

Misztal P. (2019). Unconditional basic income as an instrument for reducing income inequalities. The case of Poland. *Acta Oeconomica*, 69(1), pp.63-79.

Moffitt Robert and Kehrer Kenneth . (1978). Estimating Labor Supply Disincentives of a Negative Income Tax: Some Results and Lessons from the Experiments. Princeton: .

Moffitt R A. (1979). The Labor Supply Response in the Gary Experiment. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 14(4), pp.477.

Moffitt R A. (1981). The Negative Income Tax: Would It Discourage Work? . *Monthly Labor Review*, 104(4), pp.23.

Munnell A H. (1987). Lessons from the Income Maintenance Experiments: An Overview - Proceedings of a Conference Held in September 1986.. In: . Boston: Federal Reserve Bank of Boston, pp.1-32. Available at: function URL() { [native code] }.

Murnane R J. (1981). New evidence on the relationship between mother's education and children's cognitive skills. *Economics of Education Review*, 1(2), pp.245-252.

Newstex . (2017). ValueWalk: Is A Universal Basic Income A Good Idea?. Chatham: Newstex.

Pinto A D, Perri M and Pedersen C L; Aratangy T; Hapsari A P; Hwang S W;. (2021). Exploring different methods to evaluate the impact of basic income interventions: a systematic review. *International Journal for Equity in Health*, 20(142), pp.1-20.

Riddell C and Riddell W C. (2021). Welfare versus work under a negative income tax: Evidence from the Gary, Seattle, Denver and Manitoba income maintenance experiments. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Robins Philip K. (1984). The Labor Supply Response of Twenty-Year Families in the Denver Income Maintenance Experiment. *The Review of Economics and Statistics*, 66(3), pp.491.

Robins P K. (1985). A Comparison of the Labor Supply Findings from the Four Negative Income Tax Experiments. *The Journal of Human Resources*, 20(4), pp.567.

Ruckert A, Huynh C and Labonté R; (2018). Reducing health inequities: Is universal basic income the way forward?. *Journal of Public Health (United Kingdom)*, 40(1), pp.3-7.

Salkind N J and Haskins R. (1982). Negative Income Tax: The Impact on Children from Low-Income Families. *Journal of Family Issues*, 3(2), pp.165-180.

Smith Richard. (1997). Doctors can reduce the harmful effects of poverty. *BMJ*, 314(7082), pp.695-695.

Specianova Jitka. (2018). Labor Supply Elasticity in the Unconditional Basic Income System: Data Sources and Methodological Issues. *European Scientific Journal and ESJ*, 14(4), pp.13-13.

Stephenson S P and McDonald J F;. (1979). Disaggregation of Income Maintenance Impacts on Family Earnings. *The Review Of Economics And Statistics*, 61(3), pp.354-360.

Stryker S. (1976). Large-scale, longitudinal policy research: Promise, problems and payoff. *Sociological Focus*, 9(1), pp.99-105.

Torry M. (2021). Do We Need Basic Income Experiments?. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.39-54.

Widerquist K. (2002). A Failure to Communicate: The Labour Market Findings of the Negative Income Tax Experiments and Their Effects on Policy and Public Opinion. Geneva: BIEN 9th International Congress, September 12th-14th.

Widerquist K. (2005). A failure to communicate: What (if anything) can we learn from the negative income tax experiments?. *Journal of Socio-Economics*, 34(1), pp.49-81.

Widerquist K. (2006). The Bottom Line in a Basic Income Experiment. *Basic Income Studies*, 1(2), pp.1-5.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers, Policymakers, and Citizens, Exploring the Basic Income Guarantee. Chapter 6:BIG Experiments of the 1970s and the Public Reaction to Them. Cham: Palgrave Pivot.

Widerquist K. (2021). Further reflections on basic income experiments. *Ethical Perspectives*, 28(1), pp.103-115.

Young C. (2018). Realising basic income experiments in the UK: a typology and toolkit of basic income design and delivery. London: RSA Action and Research Centre.

Mincome

Allegri G and Foschi R . (2021). Universal Basic Income as a Promoter of Real Freedom in a Digital Future. *World Futures*, 77(1), pp.1-22.

Alston P. (2019). Universal basic income as a social rights-based antidote to growing economic insecurity. In: , ed., *The Future of Economic and Social Rights*. : Cambridge University Press, pp.377-404.

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Belshaw D. (2016). Why I support Universal Basic Income (UBI). Online blog: disours.es.

Bennett S E. (1986). Do public program clients understand public program rules? The Manitoba Basic Annual Income Experiment. *Canadian Public Administration*, 29(3), pp.462-468.

Blatchford Andy. (2016). Liberal-dominated committee calls on Ottawa to study guaranteed income. *The Canadian Press*, , pp..

Calnitsky D. (2016). "More Normal than Welfare": The Mincome Experiment, Stigma, and Community Experience. *Canadian Review of Sociology*, 53(1), pp.26-71.

Calnitsky D and Latner J P. (2017). Basic Income in a Small Town: Understanding the Elusive Effects on Work. *Social Problems*, 64(3), pp.373-397.

Calnitsky D, Latner J P and Forget E L;. (2019). Life after Work: The Impact of Basic Income on Nonemployment Activities. *Social Science History*, 43(4), pp.657-677.

Calnitsky David. (2019). Basic Income and the Pitfalls of Randomization: Understanding People in Their Social Worlds. *Contexts*, 18(1), pp.22-29.

Calnitsky D. (2021). The employer response to the guaranteed annual income. *Socio-Economic Review*, 18(2), pp.493-517.

The Canadian Press. (2012). Manitoba researchers looking into 1970s living wage program Mincome: Researchers look into living wage program. *The Canadian Press*, , pp..

Cantillon S and McLean C . (2016). Basic income guarantee: The gender impact within households. *Journal of Sociology and Social Welfare*, 43(3), pp.97-120.

Chen Y A and Quiñonez C. (2018). Basic income guarantee: a review of implications for oral health. *Journal of Public Health Dentistry*, 78(1), pp.56-62.

Choudhry S A and Hum D P.J;. (1995). Graduated work incentives and how they affect marital stability: The Canadian evidence. *Applied Economics Letters*, 2(10), pp.367-371.

Evans PM. (1984). Work and welfare: a profile of low-income single mothers. *Canadian Social Work Review*, , pp.81-96.

Forget E L. (2011). The town with no poverty: The health effects of a Canadian guaranteed annual income field experiment. *Canadian Public Policy*, 37(3), pp.283-305.

Forget EL. (2012). Canada: The Case for Basic Income. In: Murray M, ed., *Basic income worldwide: horizons of reform.*: Palgrave Macmillan, London, pp.81-101.

Forget E L. (2013). New questions, new data, old interventions: The health effects of a guaranteed annual income. *Preventive Medicine*, 57(6), pp.925-928.

Forget E L. (2012). Policy Brief No 10: The Town with No Poverty: Health Effects of Guaranteed Annual Income. *Population Change and Lifecourse Strategic Knowledge Cluster Research/Policy Brief*, 1(3), pp.1-4.

Frankel S. (2020). Basic Income Advocacy in Canada: Multiple Streams, Experiments and the Road Ahead. In: Caputo RK and Liu L, ed., *Political Activism and Basic Income Guarantee International Experiences and Perspectives Past, Present, and Near Future*. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan, pp.139-162.

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (202). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J ; Yemtsov R ;, ed., <code>Exploring Universal</code>

Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Gibson M, Hearty W and Craig P;. (2020). The public health effects of interventions similar to basic income: a scoping review. *The Lancet Public Health*, 5(3), pp.e165-e176.

Gilbert R, Murphy N A and Stepka A; Barrett M; Worku D;. (2018). Would a Basic Income Guarantee Reduce the Motivation to Work? An Analysis of Labor Responses in 16 Trial Programs. *Basic Income Studies*, 13(2), pp.1-13.

Gonalons-Pons Pilar and Calnitsky David . (2021). Exit, voice and loyalty in the family: findings from a basic income experiment. *Socio-Economic Review*, , pp..

Gupta R, Jacob J and Bansal G;. (2021). The Role of UBI in Mitigating the Effects of Psychosocial Stressors: A Review and Proposal. *Psychological Reports*, , pp..

Hasdell R. (2020). What we know about universal basic income a cross-synthesis of reviews. Stanford: Stanford BI Lab.

Hicks P. (2017). Toward a New Balance in Social Policy: The Future Role of Guaranteed Annual Income within the Safety Net. *Commentary - C.D. Howe Institute*, (465), pp.1-19.

Hum Derek P, Simpson Wayne and Hoy Michael; (1992). Hum, Derek P & Wayne Simpson. Income Maintenance, Work Effort & The Canadian Mincome Experiment // Review. *Canadian Public Policy*, 18(2), pp.242-243.

Hum D and Simpson W . (1993). Whatever happened to Canada's guaranteed income project?. *Canadian Public Administration*, 36(3), pp.442-450.

Hum Derek and Simpson Wayne . (2001). A guaranteed annual income? from Mincome to the millennium. *Policy Options/Options Politiques*, 22(1), pp.78-82.

Jarosiewicz Scott. (2016). Basic Income and Housing Satisfaction: Evidence from the Mincome Experiment. . .

Johnson MT, Johnson EA and Nettle D; Pickett KE; (2021). Designing trials of Universal Basic Income for health impact: identifying interdisciplinary questions to address.. *Journal of Public Health*, doi:10.1093/pubmed/fdaa255, pp.1-9.

Lawson E. (2021). The health benefits of universal basic income. *British Journal of General Practice*, 71(708), pp.291.

Lehmann J and Sanders R . (2018). Editorial: Towards a universal basic income?. *Children Australia*, 43(4), pp.221-224.

Levasseur K, Paterson S and Carvalho Moreira; N;. (2018). Conditional and Unconditional Cash Transfers: Implications for Gender. *Basic Income Studies*, 13(1), pp.1-9 (article number 20180005).

Lowe C, Grosh M and George T; Gentilini U; (202). What Does It Take to Deliver a Universal Basic Income in Practice?. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*:, pp.217-235.

Manansala A C F. (2021). The Universal Basic Income: A Universal Solution or A Pipe Dream?. *Respublica: Undergraduate Journal Of Political Science*, 5(2), pp.56-62.

Mulvale J P. (2008). Basic Income and the Canadian Welfare State: Exploring the Realms of Possibility. *Basic Income Studies*, 3(1), pp.1-25.

Newstex . (2016). Cantech Letter: This 1970's experiment shows why a Guaranteed Annual Income could work in Canada: study. Chatham: Newstex.

Newstex . (2017). ValueWalk: Is A Universal Basic Income A Good Idea?. Chatham: Newstex.

Painter A. (2016). A universal basic income: The answer to poverty, insecurity, and health inequality?. *BMJ (Online)*, 355, pp..

Pethokoukis J. (2017). *Here is what's happening with universal basic income experiments*. Washington: American Enterprise Institute for Public Policy Research.

Pinto A D, Perri M and Pedersen C L; Aratangy T; Hapsari A P; Hwang S W;. (2021). Exploring different methods to evaluate the impact of basic income interventions: a systematic review. *International Journal for Equity in Health*, 20(142), pp.1-20.

Power E. (2019). Evelyn Forget: Basic Income for Canadians: The key to a healthier, happier, more secure life for all. *Basic Income Studies*, 14(2), pp.1-2.

Prescott David, Swidinsky Robert and Wilton David A;. (1986). Labour Supply Estimates for Low-Income Female Heads of Households Using Mincome Data. *The Canadian Journal of Economics*, 19(1), pp.134-141.

Riddell C and Riddell W C. (2021). Welfare versus work under a negative income tax: Evidence from the Gary, Seattle, Denver and Manitoba income maintenance experiments. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Ruckert A, Huynh C and Labonté R; (2018). Reducing health inequities: Is universal basic income the way forward? *Journal of Public Health (United Kingdom)*, 40(1), pp.3-7.

Simpson W, Mason G and Godwin R;. (2017). The Manitoba basic annual income experiment: Lessons learned 40 years later. *Canadian Public Policy*, 43(1), pp.85-104.

Specianova Jitka. (2018). Labor Supply Elasticity in the Unconditional Basic Income System: Data Sources and Methodological Issues. *European Scientific Journal and ESJ*, 14(4), pp.13-13.

St Joseph Communications. (2020). A pandemic's legacy. Maclean's, , pp..

Ståhl C and MacEachen E . (2021). Universal Basic Income as a Policy Response to COVID-19 and Precarious Employment: Potential Impacts on Rehabilitation and Return-to-Work. *Journal of Occupational Rehabilitation*, 31(1), pp.3-6.

Standing G. (2021). Basic Income Pilots: Uses, Limitations and Design Principles. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.75-99.

Torry M. (2021). Do We Need Basic Income Experiments?. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.39-54.

Widerquist K. (2002). A Failure to Communicate: The Labour Market Findings of the Negative Income Tax Experiments and Their Effects on Policy and Public Opinion. Geneva: BIEN 9th International Congress, September 12th-14th.

Widerquist K. (2005). A failure to communicate: What (if anything) can we learn from the negative income tax experiments?. *Journal of Socio-Economics*, 34(1), pp.49-81.

Widerquist K. (2006). The Bottom Line in a Basic Income Experiment. *Basic Income Studies*, 1(2), pp.1-5.

Widerquist Karl. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers, Policymakers, and Citizens: New Experimental Findings 2008–2013. : Palgrave Macmillan.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers, Policymakers, and Citizens, Exploring the Basic Income Guarantee. Chapter 6:BIG Experiments of the 1970s and the Public Reaction to Them. Cham: Palgrave Pivot.

Widerquist K. (2021). Further reflections on basic income experiments. *Ethical Perspectives*, 28(1), pp.103-115.

Wilson N and McDaid S . (2021). The mental health effects of a Universal Basic Income: A synthesis of the evidence from previous pilots. *Social Science and Medicine*, 287(114374), pp.1-14.

Young M and Mulvale JP . (2009). *Possibilities and Prospects: The Debate Over a Guaranteed Income*. Ottawa: Canadian Centre for Policy Alternatives.

Young C. (2018). Realising basic income experiments in the UK: a typology and toolkit of basic income design and delivery. London: RSA Action and Research Centre.

Experiments group 2: Recent European, Canadian and Asian experiments

Finland

Adkins L and Ylöstalo H . (2021). Experimenting with Wellbeing: Basic Income, Immaterial Labour and Changing Forms of Productivity. *Critical Sociology*, 47(3), pp.373-387.

Allas T, Maksimainen J and Manyika J; Singh N;. (2020). *An experiment to inform universal basic income*. New York: McKinsey Insights, McKinsey & Company, Inc..

Allegri G and Foschi R . (2021). Universal Basic Income as a Promoter of Real Freedom in a Digital Future. *World Futures*, 77(1), pp.1-22.

Alston P. (2019). Universal basic income as a social rights-based antidote to growing economic insecurity. In: , ed., *The Future of Economic and Social Rights*. : Cambridge University Press, pp.377-404.

Anon . (2015). Kela: Contrary to Reports, Basic Income Study Still at Preliminary Stage. New York: BusinessWire.

Anon . (2016). Finland plans to give out cash to promote employment. Dhaka: The Financial express.

Anon . (2016). Finland: Finland set to start experiment on 'universal basic income'. Bangkok: Asia News Monitor.

Anon . (2017). Northern pilot; Testing basic incomes in Finland. *The Economist*, 423(9046), pp.73.

Anon . (2017). Finland tests an unconditional basic income: Northern pilot. London: The Economist.

Anon . (2017). Universal basic income - Europe's latest social experiment. Singapore: The Business Times.

Anon . (2017). Finland to unemployed citizens. Dhaka: The Financial Express.

Anon . (2017). Finland: Finland to Pay Unemployed Basic Income of \$587 Per Month. Bangkok: Asia News Monitor.

Anon . (2017). Finland experiments with a basic income scheme for unemployed. London: OpenDemocracy.

Anon . (2018). Not finnished: The lapsing of Finland's universal basic income trial. *Economist (United Kingdom)*, 414(9086), pp..

Anon . (2018). ValueWalk: Ray Dalio: Primer On Universal Basic Income. Chatham: Newstex.

Anon . (2018). The failure of Finland's Universal Basic Income experiment. New Delhi: Mint.

Anon. (2018). Not finnished. The Economist, 427(9089), pp.66.

Anon . (2018). Finnish Failure: Guaranteed Basic Income Punishes Work, Subsidizes Sloth. Los Angeles: Investor's Business Daily.

Anon . (2018). ValueWalk: Finland Ends Its Experiment With Universal Basic Income. Chatham: Newstex.

Anon . (2018). Doubts over viability of Finnish basic income trial [Usa Region]. London (UK): Financial Times.

Anon . (2019). Was the Universal Basic Income experiment in Finland a failure?. Miami: CE Noticias Financieras.

Anon. (2019). Field notes. The Economist, 430(9130), pp.67.

Anon . (2019). Basic income in Finland: why this experiment of free money for the unemployed failed. Miami: CE Noticias Financieras.

Anon . (2019). Finland: Finland 'free money' trial did not spur unemployed to find work, researchers say. Bangkok: Asia News Monitor.

Anon . (2019). Experiment in Finland With Guaranteed Income Creates Less Stress but No Jobs. New York: Dow Jones Institutional News.

Anon . (2019). ValueWalk: All Eyes On The Results Of Finland's UBI Experiment. Chatham: Newstex.

Anon . (2020). Finland: Does Finland show the way to universal basic income?. Bangkok: Asia News Monitor.

Anon . (2020). Deutsche Welle Business - Deutsche Welle: Does Finland show the way to universal basic income?. Chatham: Newstex Global Business Blogs.

Anon . (2020). Finland's basic income improved economic well-being and security, but did not stimulate job-seeking. Miami: CE Noticias Financieras.

Anon . (2021). Cheques and balances - Might the pandemic pave the way for a universal basic income?. London: The Economist Intelligence Unit N.A., Incorporated.

Anon . (2019). Conversable Economist: Universal Basic Income: Preliminary Results from the Finnish Experiment. Chatham: Newstex Global Business Blogs.

Baker S. (2018). Chicago could soon become the biggest US city to trial a universal basic income. *Business Insider*, , pp..

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). *Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot*. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Bendix A. (2019). One of the world's largest basic-income trials, a 2-year program in Finland, was a major flop. But experts say the test was flawed.. New York: Business Insider.

Bendix A. (2021). Chicago just approved one of the US's largest basic-income pilots: \$500 monthly payments for 5,000 people. New York: Business Insider.

Berke J and Kotecki P . (2018). 'I feel very betrayed': Basic-income recipients react to one of the world's largest experiments suddenly being canceled. New York: Business Insider.

Bidadanure J, Kline S and Moore C; Rainwater B; Thomas C; (2018). *Basic Income In Cities: A guide to city experiments and pilot projects*. Stanford: National League of Cities.

Blomberg H, Kroll C and Tarkiainen L; (2021). Life on basic income - Interview accounts by basic income experiment participants on the effects of the experiment. In: Kangas O, Jauhiainen S and Simanainen M; Ylikanno M;, ed., *Experimenting with Unconditional Basic Income*. : Edward Elgar Publishing, pp.150-168.

Blomberg-Kroll Helena Kaarina, Jauhiainen Signe and Kanerva Markus; Kangas Olli; Komu Merja; Kroll Knut Christian; Lassander Maarit; Niemelä Mikko; Simanainen Miska; Tuulio-Henriksson Annamari; Ylikännö Minna;. (2019). Wellbeing effects of the basic income experiment.,, pp.16-28.

Camporesi A T. (2018). Universal Basic Income based on evidence. *Politica y Sociedad*, 55(3), pp.851-871.

Colson Thomas. (2021). Living on basic-income for 2 years made me 'feel free' says a journalist who took part in one of the world's largest trials. *Business Insider*, , pp..

de Paz-Báñez M A, Asensio-Coto M J; Sánchez-López C and Aceytuno M T;. (2020). Is there empirical evidence on how the implementation of a universal basic income (Ubi) affects labour supply? a systematic review. *Sustainability (Switzerland)*, 12(22), pp.1-36.

De Wispelaere J. (2016). Basic income in our time: Improving political prospects through policy learning?. *Journal of Social Policy*, 45(4), pp.617-634.

De Wispelaere J, Halmetoja A and Pulkka V V;. (2018). The rise (and fall) of the basic income experiment in Finland. *CESifo Forum*, 19(3), pp.15-19.

De Wispelaere J, Halmetoja A and Pulkka V-V;. (2019). The Finnish Basic Income Experiment: A Primer. In: Torry M, ed., *The Palgrave International Handbook of Basic Income*.: Palgrave Macmillan, pp.389-406.

Dermont C and Stadelmann-Steffen I . (2017). Beyond Complex Welfare Systems: Citizens' Opinion towards Basic Income proposals Compared. : .

Downes A and Lansley S. (2018). It's Basic Income: The Global Debate. Bristol: Policy Press.

Goldmark A. (2017). Episode 796: The Basic Income Experiment. Washington: NPR.

Valtteri F. (2020). Can we rely on Randomized Field Experiments (RFE's) in policymaking? : Mechanical objectivity and non-epistemic values in the Finnish Basic Income Experiment [Dissertation]. Helsinki: The University of Helsinki.

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (202). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Halmetoja A, De Wispelaere J and Perkiö J;. (2019). A policy comet in moominland? basic income in the finnish welfare state. *Social Policy and Society*, 18(2), pp.219-236.

Hannon P. (2019). *Basic Income Experiment Didn't Boost Employment -- WSJ*. New York: Dow Jones Institutional news.

Hannon P. (2019). Experiment in Finland With Guaranteed Income Creates Less Stress but No Jobs; Early results from pilot program find a set income doesn't encourage people to find work, but neither does it turn them against employment. New York, N.Y.: Wall Street Journal.

Hiilamo H. (2019). Disappointing results from the Finnish basic income experiment. [online] University of Helsinki. Available at: function URL() { [native code] } [Accessed: https://www.helsinki.fi/en/news/good-society/heikki-hiilamo-disappointing-results-finnish-basic-income-experiment].

Honkanen P and Pulkka V-V. (2016). Tackling Poverty and Social Exclusion with Unconditional Money: Notes on the Finnish Basic Income Experiment. *Scottish Anti-Poverty Review*, (22), pp.12-16.

Hoover A. (2017). *Finland experiments with basic income for jobless*. Boston, Mass.: The Christian Science Monitor.

Hoynes H and Rothstein J. (2019). Universal Basic Income in the United States and Advanced Countries. *Annual Review of Economics*, 11, pp.929-958.

Investor's Business Daily. (2018). Chicago's Next Really Bad Idea: A Guaranteed Basic Income. *Investor's Business Daily*, , pp..

Jackson K. (2020). Universal Basic Income — Just Another Welfare Program That Will Fail. Miami: CE Think Tank Newswire.

Johnson MT, Johnson EA and Nettle D; Pickett KE; (2021). Designing trials of Universal Basic Income for health impact: identifying interdisciplinary questions to address.. *Journal of Public Health*, doi:10.1093/pubmed/fdaa255, pp.1-9.

Kalaniemi S M. (2019). Carbon footprints at the universal basic income experiment's consumption level in Finland [thesis]. Reykjavik: University of Iceland.

Kalaniemi S, Ottelin J and Heinonen J; Junnila S;. (2020). Downscaling consumption to universal basic income level falls short of sustainable carbon footprint in Finland. *Environmental Science and Policy*, 114, pp.377-383.

Kalliomaa-Puha L, Tuovinen A-K and Kangas O;. (2016). The Basic Income Experiment in Finland. *Journal of Social Security Law*, 23(2), pp.74-87.

Kangas O. (2016). From idea to experiment. Report on universal basic income experiment in Finland [abridged from original report in Finnish]. Helsinki: Kela.

Kangas O, Simanainen M and Honkanen P;. (2017). Basic Income in the Finnish Context. *Intereconomics*, 52(2), pp.87-91.

Kangas Olli, Jauhiainen Signe and Simanainen Miska; (2021). *Experimenting with Unconditional Basic Income*.: Edward Elgar Publishing.

Kangas O, Jauhiainen S and Simanainen M; Ylikännö M;. (2021). Introduction to the journey of the Finnish basic income experiment. In: Kangas O, Jauhiainen S and Simanainen M; Ylikännö

M;, ed., *Experimenting with Unconditional Basic Income: Lessons from the Finnish BI Experiment 2017-2018.* Cheltenham: Edward Elgar Publishing, pp..

Kangas Olli. (2021). Making of the Finnish basic income experiment: Lessons from the Finnish BI Experiment 2017-2018. In: Kangas O, Jauhiainen S and Simanainen M; Ylikännö M;, ed., *Experimenting with Unconditional Basic Income*. Cheltenham: Edward Elgar Publishing, pp.18-36.

Kangas O and Simanainen M . (2021). The Finnish social security system: Background to the Finnish basic income experiment. In: Kangas O, Jauhiainen S and Simanainen M; Ylikännö M; ed., *Experimenting with Unconditional Basic Income: Lessons from the Finnish BI Experiment* 2017-2018. Cheltenham: Edward Elgar Publishing, pp.6-17.

Kim S K and Lee B J;. (2021). An exploratory study of basic income fidelity index. *Asian Social Work and Policy Review*, 15(1), pp.80-83.

Koistinen P and Perkiö J. (2014). Good and Bad Times of Social Innovations: The Case of Universal Basic Income in Finland. *Basic Income Studies*, 9(1-2), pp.25-57.

Koistinen P. (2016). Challenges of the basic income: the BI experiment of Finland and its anticipated effects on employment [Conference presentation]. Barcelona: The International Working Party On Labour Market Segmentation.

Kotecki P. (2018). Chicago could be the largest US city to launch a basic income pilot — here are the other major experiments around the world. New York: Business Insider.

Lassander M and Jauhiainen S. (2021). Financial well-being in basic income experiment. In: Kangas O, Jauhiainen S and Simanainen M; Ylikännö M;, ed., *Experimenting with Unconditional Basic Income*.: Edward Elgar Publishing, pp.89-105.

Lehto O. (2019). Schrödinger's Basic Income: What Does the Finnish UBI Experiment Really Show?. London: Newstex/Adam Smith Institute Blog.

Lowe C, Grosh M and George T; Gentilini U;. (202). What Does It Take to Deliver a Universal Basic Income in Practice?. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*:, pp.217-235.

Mäkkylä K. (2021). Media coverage of the Finnish basic income experiment. In: Kangas O, Jauhiainen S and Simanainen M; Ylikännö M;, ed., *Experimenting with Unconditional Basic Income*. Cheltenham: Edward Elgar Publishing, pp.169-186.

Mannevuo M. (2019). Neuroliberalism in Action: The Finnish Experiment with Basic Income. *Theory and Culture and Society*, 36(4), pp.27-47.

Martinelli L. (2019). Basic income: world's first national experiment in Finland shows only modest benefits. London: The Conversation.

Mathebula B. (2021). *The universal basic income grant (UBIG): A comparative review of the characteristics and impact*. Sankt Augustin, Germany: Department of Social Policy and Social Securities, Hochschule Bonn-Rhein-Sieg.

Mazavin O, Kaz M and Roshchina I; (2019). Well-being and sustainable development of mining regions: The universal basic income. *E3S Web of Conferences (14th International Innovative Mining Symposium and IIMS 2019)*, 105(04035), pp.1-7.

Midoes C. (2019). Universal basic income and the Finnish experiment. Brussels: Bruegel.

Milne R. (2018). Finland's finance minister rejects universal basic income. London: The Financial Times Limited.

Milne R. (2018). Money for nothing? Finns tot up value of basic income experiment. London: The Financial Times Limited.

Misztal P. (2019). Unconditional basic income as an instrument for reducing income inequalities. The case of Poland. *Acta Oeconomica*, 69(1), pp.63-79.

Newstex . (2017). ValueWalk: Is A Universal Basic Income A Good Idea?. Chatham: Newstex.

Le Dong Hai Nguyen. (2021). On the implementation of the Universal Basic Income as a response to technological unemployment. *International Journal of Management Research and Economics*, 1(3), pp.1-6.

Osterkamp R. (2017). Controversies over the unconditional basic income: Clarifying contributions of empirical research. *Sozialer Fortschritt*, 66(6), pp.451-461.

Parth A M and Nyby J. (2020). Welfare experiments as tools for evidence-based policy making? The political debate on Twitter about the basic income trial in Finland. *Policy Studies*, , pp. DOI: 10.1080/01442872.2020.1772217.

Patel S B and Kariel J. (2021). Universal basic income and covid-19 pandemic. The BMJ, 372, pp..

Pethokoukis J. (2017). Here is what's happening with universal basic income experiments. Washington: American Enterprise Institute for Public Policy Research.

Pinto A D, Perri M and Pedersen C L; Aratangy T; Hapsari A P; Hwang S W;. (2021). Exploring different methods to evaluate the impact of basic income interventions: a systematic review. *International Journal for Equity in Health*, 20(142), pp.1-20.

Pohjanpalo K. (2019). Finland's Basic Income Experiment Shows Recipients Are Happier and More Secure. New York: Bloomberg Wire Service.

Pohjanpalo K. (2019). *Pioneering Free Money Trial Didn't Help Finns Find Jobs*. New York: Bloomberg Wire Service.

Pulkka V V. (2016). Activation Politics 2.0: The Finnish experiment of basic income. *Multitudes*, 63(2), pp.90-99.

Pulkka V-V. (2019). What (If Anything) Can We Learn from the Finnish Basic Income Experiment. Bath: Institute for Policy Research (IPR).

Schupp J. (2020). Unconditional Basic Income: Much Approval, But Also Much Rejection. *Wirtschaftsdienst*, 100(2), pp.112-116.

Schuster A. (2021). Chicago may hand \$500 monthly for a year to 5,000 low-income families. Miami: CE Think Tank Newswire.

Simanainen M and Kangas O. (2020). Speaking to those who know it best: Does participation in an experiment explain citizens' attitudes to basic income?. *Journal of International and Comparative Social Policy*, 36(3), pp.269-283.

Simonsson E. (2017). Feministiska utopier eller neoliberala visioner i Finlands försök med basinkomst. Lund: Lunds universitet .

Ståhl C and MacEachen E . (2021). Universal Basic Income as a Policy Response to COVID-19 and Precarious Employment: Potential Impacts on Rehabilitation and Return-to-Work. *Journal of Occupational Rehabilitation*, 31(1), pp.3-6.

Standing G. (2021). Basic Income Pilots: Uses, Limitations and Design Principles. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.75-99.

Taylor T. (2019). Universal Basic Income: Preliminary Results from the Finnish Experiment. St. Paul: Newstex.

Torjesen I. (2019). Sixty seconds on . . . free money. BMJ, 364, pp.1 doi: 10.1136/bmj.l856 .

Torry M. (2021). Do We Need Basic Income Experiments?. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.39-54.

Tsvirko S. (2020). Universal Basic Income as an Innovation in Social Policy and Public Finance: SWOT Analysis. *International Conference on Digital Science and DSIC 2019*, 1114 AISC, pp.55-64.

Tsvirko S. (2020). Universal basic income: Comparative analysis of experiments. *1st International Conference on Human Interaction and Emerging Technologies and IHIET 2019*, 1018, pp.719-724.

Tuovinen A-K. (2021). Constitutional preconditions for the Finnish basic income experiment. In: Kangas O, Jauhiainen S and Simanainen M; Ylikännö M;, ed., *Experimenting with Unconditional Basic Income*. : Edward Elgar Publishing, pp.37-43.

Uras U. (2017). Finland introduces basic income for unemployed. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

Vembu Venky. (2018). Money for doing nothing: the economics of Utopia. Businessline, , pp..

Verho J, Hämäläinen K and Kanninen O; (2021). *Removing Welfare Traps: Employment Responses in the Finnish Basic Income Experiment*. St. Louis: Federal Reserve Bank of St Louis.

Wehner B. (2019). Universal Basic Income and the Reshaping of Democracy Towards a Citizens' Stipend in a New Political Order: The Role of Pilot Studies. Cham: Springer.

Whitley D. (2018). BLOG: David Whitley's World: Finland's failed universal basic income experiment should be a lesson for U.S.. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

Widerquist Karl. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: The Vulnerability of Experimental Findings to Misunderstanding, Misuse, Spin, and the Streetlight Effect. : Palgrave Macmillan.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Wilson N and McDaid S . (2021). The mental health effects of a Universal Basic Income: A synthesis of the evidence from previous pilots. *Social Science and Medicine*, 287(114374), pp.1-14.

Young C. (2018). Realising basic income experiments in the UK: a typology and toolkit of basic income design and delivery. London: RSA Action and Research Centre.

Young C. (2019). Experimental Finland. Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development. The OECD Observer, 6 March 2019, pp.1-3.

Luis Linares Zapata (Translated by ContentEngine LLC. (2020). Basic income. *CE Noticias Financieras*, , pp..

Zeballos-Roig J. (2020). The final results are in: Finland's basic-income trial found people were happier, but weren't more likely to get jobs. New York: Business Insider.

Barcelona

Arnold C. (2020). Pandemic speeds largest test yet of universal basic income.. *Nature*, 583(7817), pp.502-503.

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Belmonte S M. (2019). REC, citizen currency Final report B-MINCOME project November 2019. Barcelona: REC Barcelona.

Blanco I, Fernández C and Gallego R; Marra G; Yanes S;. (2019). *Executive Summary: Analysis of the results and its progress and final report*. Barcelona: Universitat Autonoma de Barcelona.

Blanco I, Fernández C and Gallego R; Marra G; Yanes S;. (2020). *Executive Summary: final report - assessment of governance*. Barcelona: Universitat Autonoma de Barcelona.

Bollain J, Groot L and Miller A; Schmidt E; Tahiraj E; Verlaat T; Yi G; (2019). A Variety of Experiments. In: Torry M, ed., *The Palgrave International Handbook of Basic Income*.: Palgrave Macmillan, Cham, pp.407-435.

Bonilla F and Sekulova F. (2019). B-Mincome's impact on life satisfaction (WP7. Deliverable 7.4.2. Assessment of the impact of the GMI.). Barcelona: Universitat Autonoma de Barcelona.

Camporesi A T. (2018). Universal Basic Income based on evidence. *Politica y Sociedad*, 55(3), pp.851-871.

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (2020). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Graham F. (2020). Daily briefing: Spain begins an epic economics experiment in universal basic income.. *Nature*, , pp.2020-07-10.

Hasdell R. (2020). What we know about universal basic income a cross-synthesis of reviews. Stanford: Stanford BI Lab.

Hill-Dixon A, Green H and Davis H; Boelman V; Sanchez S;. (2019). *Getting by in Barcelona: A portrait of life before basic income*. London: The Young Foundation.

Hill-Dixon A, Davis H and Patel G; Boelman V;. (2020). The Voices of Basic Minimum Income A report evaluating experiences of a B-MINCOME trial in Barcelona. London: The Young Foundation.

Hill-Dixon A, Davis H and Patel G; Boelman V;. (2020). *The Voices of Basic Minimum Income Executive Summary February* 2020. London: The Young Foundation.

Laín B. (2019). Report on the preliminary results of the B-MINCOME project (2017-2018) Combining a guaranteed minimum income and active social policies in deprived urban areas of Barcelona. Barcelona: Barcelona City Council.

Laín B and Merrill R . (2021). Why Do We Run Basic Income Experiments? From Empirical Evidence to Collective Debate. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.27-38.

Mathebula B. (2021). *The universal basic income grant (UBIG): A comparative review of the characteristics and impact*. Sankt Augustin, Germany: Department of Social Policy and Social Securities, Hochschule Bonn-Rhein-Sieg.

Neuwinger M. (2021). The revolution will not be randomized: Universal basic income, randomized controlled trials, and 'evidence-based' social policy. *Global Social Policy*, pp.1-19.

Riutort S, Julià A and Laín B; Torrens L;. (2021). *B-MINCOME: pilot final results (2017-2019): executive report*. Barcelona: Area of Social Rights, Global Justice, Feminism and LGBTI Affairs, Barcelona City Council.

Sabes-Figuera R and Todeschini F . (2019). *Barcelona city council new welfare programme: Economic evaluation results* . Barcelona: Institut Catala d'Avalucio de Politiques Publiques.

Todeschini F and Sabes-Figuera R . (2019). Barcelona city council welfare programme: Impact evaluation results BMINCOME PROJECT D 7.1.3 Final report: Impact evaluation of GMI on household outcomes. Barcelona: Institut Català d'Avaluació de Polítiques Públiques.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Wilson N and McDaid S . (2021). The mental health effects of a Universal Basic Income: A synthesis of the evidence from previous pilots. *Social Science and Medicine*, 287(114374), pp.1-14.

Ontario

Anon . (2016). OPSEU sounds note of caution on Basic Income plan. Ottawa: CNW.

Anon . (2016). Ontario government consulting on basic income pilot project. Toronto: The Canadian Press.

Anon . (2016). Ontario Seeking Input on Basic Income Pilot. New Delhi: .

Anon . (2016). Archived - Basic Income Pilot in-person discussion summaries. Toronto: Ontario Government.

Anon . (2017). Ontario Basic Income Pilot Helping Provide More Security and Opportunity. New Delhi: Pivotal Sources.

Anon . (2017). Wynne announces new environment minister. Markham: Daily Commercial News, CMD Group.

Anon . (2017). Basic Income Pilot update raises more questions than it answers. Ottawa: Canada Newswire.

Anon . (2017). As would-be NDP leaders prepare for debate, Caron fleshes out basic income plan. Toronto: The Canadian Press.

Anon . (2017). Archived - Ontario Basic Income Pilot. [online] . Available at: function URL() { [native code] } [Accessed: https://www.ontario.ca/page/ontario-basic-income-pilot] .

Anon . (2018). Ontario Update. Toronto: Canadian Press.

Anon . (2018). Ontario Association of Food Banks Releases Statement on Cancellation of Basic Income Pilot and Cuts to Social Assistance. Amman: Financial Services Monitor Worldwide.

Anon . (2018). ValueWalk: Ray Dalio: Primer On Universal Basic Income. Chatham: Newstex.

Anon . (2016). *Ontario Moving Forward with Basic Income Pilot*. Ontario Newsroom: Pivotal Sources.

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). *Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot*. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Berke J. (2018). A Canadian province just killed one of the world's largest basic income pilot projects. New York: Business Insider.

Bidadanure J, Kline S and Moore C; Rainwater B; Thomas C; (2018). *Basic Income In Cities: A guide to city experiments and pilot projects*. Stanford: National League of Cities.

Bridgman S. (2020). A Narrative Analysis of Basic Income Pilots from an Ontarian Perspective. *Potentia: Journal Of International Affairs*, 11, pp.75-81.

Camporesi A T. (2018). Universal Basic Income based on evidence. *Politica y Sociedad*, 55(3), pp.851-871.

Cirtwill Charles. (2016). The North a great place for Basic Income Pilot. *Northern Ontario Business*, 36(6), pp.4.

Collier R. (2018). Cancellation of basic income project a blow to health research.. *CMAJ*: Canadian Medical Association journal = journal de l'Association medicale canadienne, 190(34), pp.E1024-E1025.

de Paz-Báñez M A, Asensio-Coto M J; Sánchez-López C and Aceytuno M T;. (2020). Is there empirical evidence on how the implementation of a universal basic income (Ubi) affects labour supply? a systematic review. *Sustainability (Switzerland)*, 12(22), pp.1-36.

Downes A and Lansley S. (2018). It's Basic Income: The Global Debate. Bristol: Policy Press.

Dujay John. (2017). Basic income pilot recommended. Canadian HR Reporter, 30(3), pp.6.

Ferdosi M and McDowell T. (2020). More than Welfare: The Experiences of Employed and Unemployed Ontario Basic Income Recipients. *Basic Income Studies*, 15(2), pp.1-40.

Ferdosi M, McDowell T and Lewchuk W; Ross S;. (2020). *Southern Ontario's Basic Income Experience*. Hamilton: McMaster University.

Forget E, Marando D and Surman T; Urban M C;. (2016). *Pilot Lessons: How to Design a Basic Income Pilot Project for Ontario*. Toronto: Mowat Centre, University of Toronto.

Frankel S. (2020). Basic Income Advocacy in Canada: Multiple Streams, Experiments and the Road Ahead. In: Caputo RK and Liu L , ed., *Political Activism and Basic Income Guarantee International Experiences and Perspectives Past, Present, and Near Future*. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan, pp.139-162.

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (2020). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Glass K. (n.d.). *Ontario Basic Income Pilot*.: https://basicincome.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/01/Karen_Glass_Ontario_experiment.pdf.

Hamilton L and Mulvale J P. (2019). "Human Again": The (Unrealized) Promise of Basic Income in Ontario. *Journal of Poverty*, 23(7), pp.576-599.

Hicks P. (2017). Toward a New Balance in Social Policy: The Future Role of Guaranteed Annual Income within the Safety Net. *Commentary - C.D. Howe Institute*, (465), pp.1-19.

Hoynes H and Rothstein J. (2019). Universal Basic Income in the United States and Advanced Countries. *Annual Review of Economics*, 11, pp.929-958.

Jackson K. (2020). Universal Basic Income — Just Another Welfare Program That Will Fail. Miami: CE Think Tank Newswire.

Jeffords S. (2018). Mayors ask federal government to take over Ontario's basic income pilot. Toronto: The Canadian Press.

Jeffords S. (2018). Ontario's basic income pilot to end March 2019. Toronto: The Canadian Press.

Smith Cross J. (2017). Ontario to launch basic income pilot project in three regions. Toronto: The Canadian Press.

Jones A. (2019). Class-action lawsuit proposed over cancellation of Ontario basic income pilot. Toronto: The Canadian Press.

Kotecki P. (2018). One of the world's largest basic income experiments was abruptly shortened — now a Canadian political leader is trying to restart it. New York: .

Lehmann J and Sanders R . (2018). Editorial: Towards a universal basic income?. *Children Australia*, 43(4), pp.221-224.

Loriggio P. (2018). Ontario government defends move to axe basic income pilot project. Toronto: The Canadian Press.

MacLean J. (2017). Cantech Letter: Ontario to test a guaranteed basic income, but which town will be the guinea pig?. Chatham: Newstex.

Mason G C. (2018). It was time to walk away from Ontario's flawed basic income project. Toronto: The Canadian Press.

Mathebula B. (2021). *The universal basic income grant (UBIG): A comparative review of the characteristics and impact*. Sankt Augustin, Germany: Department of Social Policy and Social Securities, Hochschule Bonn-Rhein-Sieg.

Mazavin O, Kaz M and Roshchina I; (2019). Well-being and sustainable development of mining regions: The universal basic income. *E3S Web of Conferences (14th International Innovative Mining Symposium and IIMS 2019)*, 105(04035), pp.1-7.

McDowell T and Ferdosi M . (2020). The Experiences of Social Assistance Recipients on the Ontario Basic Income Pilot. *Canadian Review of Sociology*, 57(4), pp.681-707.

McDowell T and Ferdosi M . (2021). The Impacts of the Ontario Basic Income Pilot: A Comparative Analysis of the Findings from the Hamilton Region. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(2), pp.209-256.

Newstex . (2016). Distressed Volatility: Canada To Experiment With Basic Income. Chatham: Newstex.

Segal H. (2016). Archived - Finding a Better Way: A Basic Income Pilot Project for Ontario. Toronto: Ontario Government.

Smith-Carrier T and On J . (2021). Debunking Myths about Poverty: Social Actor Representation of the Participants of the Canceled Ontario Basic Income Pilot Project. *Journal of Poverty*, , pp.1-20.

Ståhl C and MacEachen E . (2021). Universal Basic Income as a Policy Response to COVID-19 and Precarious Employment: Potential Impacts on Rehabilitation and Return-to-Work. *Journal of Occupational Rehabilitation*, 31(1), pp.3-6.

MacKenzie T. (2018). Testing Time: Uncovering Potential Impacts of Project Duration in Basic Income Pilots. . OCAD University.

Tsvirko S. (2020). Universal Basic Income as an Innovation in Social Policy and Public Finance: SWOT Analysis. *International Conference on Digital Science and DSIC 2019*, 1114 AISC, pp.55-64.

Tsvirko S. (2020). Universal basic income: Comparative analysis of experiments. *1st International Conference on Human Interaction and Emerging Technologies and IHIET 2019*, 1018, pp.719-724.

Wall D. (2017). Ontario Building Trades hear election pitches from Wynne and Horwath. *Daily Commercial News*, 90(201), pp.1-2.

Wehner B. (2019). Universal Basic Income and the Reshaping of Democracy Towards a Citizens' Stipend in a New Political Order: The Role of Pilot Studies. Cham: Springer.

Werner L B. (2021). When stories change our worlds: An ethnography of basic income in Lindsay, Ontario. . Concordia University .

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Wilson N and McDaid S . (2021). The mental health effects of a Universal Basic Income: A synthesis of the evidence from previous pilots. Social Science and Medicine, 287(114374), pp.1-14.

Young C. (2018). Realising basic income experiments in the UK: a typology and toolkit of basic income design and delivery. London: RSA Action and Research Centre.

DIW/Mein Grundeinkommen

Anon . (2019). Deutsche Welle Business - Deutsche Welle: Germany's 'money for nothing' experiment raises basic income questions. Chatham: Newstex.

Anon . (2020). Germany: Money for nothing: Germany starts basic income experiment. Bangkok: .

Anon . (2020). Deutsche Welle Business - Deutsche Welle: Money for nothing: Germany starts basic income experiment. Chatham: Newstex.

Anon . (2020). Universal basic income experiment: Germany will pay \$1,420 a month to 120 people. Miami: CE Noticias Financieras.

Anon . (2021). The German experiment of collecting money for nothing. Miami: CE Noticias Financieras.

Anon . (2021). Germany starts studies to implement a universal basic income. Miami: CE Noticias Financieras.

Anon . (2021). Cheques and balances - Might the pandemic pave the way for a universal basic income?. London: The Economist Intelligence Unit N.A., Incorporated.

Busch J. (2020). Basic Income Pilot Project: How does a basic income change our society? We want to know.. Berlin: Mein Grundeinkommen e.V. .

Camporesi A T. (2018). Universal Basic Income based on evidence. *Politica y Sociedad*, 55(3), pp.851-871.

Payne A. (2020). Germany is beginning a universal-basic-income trial with people getting \$1,400 a month for 3 years. New York: .

Ward M. (2020). Germany gets a new universal basic income experiment as more countries consider cash handouts amid the pandemic. New York: Business Insider.

HartzPlus

Anon . (2018). Studienstart: Was bewirken Sanktionen? Bundesweite Studie zu Anon . (2018). Studienstart: Was bewirken Sanktionen? Bundesweite Studie zu "HartzPlus", dem bedingungslosen Update für Hartz 4 / Ab heute werden 500 Probanden gesucht [press release 2/12/18]. Berlin: Sanktionsfrei.

Anon . (2019). Deutsche Welle Business - Deutsche Welle: Germany's 'money for nothing' experiment raises basic income questions. Chatham: Newstex.

Anon . (n.d.). What are the effects of sanction-free basic social security? Germany's first scientific experiment finds out. : .

Spermann Alexander. (2019). Basisgeld plus Steuergutschriften statt Hartz IV. *Wirtschaftsdienst*, 99(3), pp.181-188.

CBI Scotland

Anon . (2018). ValueWalk: Ray Dalio: Primer On Universal Basic Income. Chatham: Newstex.

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). *Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot*. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Bollain J, Groot L and Miller A; Schmidt E; Tahiraj E; Verlaat T; Yi G;. (2019). A Variety of Experiments. In: Torry M, ed., *The Palgrave International Handbook of Basic Income.*: Palgrave Macmillan, Cham, pp.407-435.

Citizen's Basic Income Feasibility Study Steering Group. (2019). Assessing the Feasibility of Citizen's Basic Income Pilots in Scotland: An Interim Report. www.basicincome.scot: Citizen's Basic Income Feasibility Study Steering Group.

Citizen's Basic Income Feasibility Study Steering Group. (2019). *Scottish citizens basic income feasibility project update report to Scottish government*. www.basicincome.scot: e Citizen's Basic Income Feasibility Study Steering Group.

Citizens' Basic Income Feasibility Study Steering Group. (2020). Assessing the Feasibility of Citizens' Basic Income Pilots in Scotland: Final Report. www.basicincome.scot: Citizens' Basic Income Feasibility Study Steering Group.

Cooke J. (2019). 'Basic Income' could help create an innovation nation. Edinburgh: MGN Ltd..

Danson M W. (2019). Exploring Benefits and Costs: Challenges of Implementing Citizen's Basic Income in Scotland. In: Lei Delsen, ed., *Empirical Research on an Unconditional Basic Income in Europe (Series title: Contributions to Economics).* : Springer, pp.81-108.

Fife Council, North Ayrshire Council and City of Edinburgh Council; Glasgow City Council; (2018). *Citizens Basic Income Feasibility Studies Fund Application for Funding* . gov.scot: Scottish Government.

Gibson M, Hearty W and Craig P; (2018). Potential effects of universal basic income: a scoping review of evidence on impacts and study characteristics. *The Lancet*, 392(11), pp.S36-S36.

McCartney G, Craig N and Myers F; Hearty W; Barclay C;. (2021). What Are the Implications of Applying Equipoise in Planning Citizens Basic Income Pilots in Scotland?. *Public Health Ethics*, 14(1), pp.109-116.

Painter A, Cooke J and Burbidge I; Ahmed A; (2019). *A Basic Income for Scotland*. London: RSA Action and Research Centre.

Shaw J and Paterson J. (2019). *Exploring the social security implications of a citizen's basic income pilot*. Glasgow: Child Poverty Action Group in Scotland.

Vaughan P. (2017). Towards Universal Basic Income. fife.gov.uk: Fife Council.

Wehner B. (2019). Universal Basic Income and the Reshaping of Democracy Towards a Citizens' Stipend in a New Political Order: The Role of Pilot Studies. Cham: Springer.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Maezawa (Japan)

Anon . (2020). Maezawa Method Basic Income Social Experiment Yields Lower Divorce Rates, Increases in Business Startups, and Happier People with 1-million-yen in Early Participant Study. New York: PR Newswire.

Anon . (2020). Distribution of 1-million-yen (total of 1-billion-yen) Cash Benefit Begins: A large-scaled Basic Income Social Experiment Survey conducted in 3 different payment methods. New York: Newstex.

Anon Translated by ContentEngine LLC. (2020). *A Japanese billionaire draws \$9 million in a "social experiment"*. Miami: CE Noticias Financieras.

Maezawa basic income social experiment. (2020). *Basic Income Social Experiment Questionnaire Survey: Sample Questions.* Japan: https://www.yusakumaezawa.com/en/data/.

Unayama T and Inoue T . (2020). *Maezawa Method - Survey Report* . Japan: https://www.yusakumaezawa.com/en/data/.

Unayama T. (2020). 'Maezawa Basic Income Social Experiment 2020' and 'Basic Income Social Experiment Survey' . Japan: https://www.yusakumaezawa.com/en/data/.

Tilburg

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M ;. (2019). Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Bollain J, Groot L and Miller A; Schmidt E; Tahiraj E; Verlaat T; Yi G; (2019). A Variety of Experiments. In: Torry M, ed., *The Palgrave International Handbook of Basic Income*.: Palgrave Macmillan, Cham, pp.407-435.

de Boer H, Bolhaar J and Jongen E ; Zulkarnain A ;. (2020). *Evaluatie experimenten Participatiewet Effecten op de uitstroom naar werk*. Den Haag: Centraal Planbureau.

de Graaf R and van Gastel M W. (2020). *Experimenten Participatiewet Procesevaluatie*. Den Haag: ZonMw.

Europees Sociaal Fonds. (2020). Vertrouwen Werkt! gemeente wageningen: Eindrapportage. Wageningen: .

Groot L, Muffels R and Verlaat T;. (2019). Welfare states' social investment strategies and the emergence of Dutch experiments on a minimum income guarantee. *Social Policy and Society*, 18(2), pp.277-287.

Muffels R, Blom-Stam K and van Wanrooij S;. (2020). *Vertrouwensexperiment Tilburg: werkt het en waarom wel of niet?*. Tilburg: Tilburg University.

Osterkamp R. (2017). Controversies over the unconditional basic income: Clarifying contributions of empirical research. *Sozialer Fortschritt*, 66(6), pp.451-461.

Rossetti F, Roosma F and Laenen T; Abts K;. (2020). An unconditional basic income? How Dutch citizens justify their opinions about a basic income and work conditionality. *Journal of International and Comparative Social Policy*, 36(3), pp.284-300.

van Ark T. (2020). Bijstandsexperimenten leiden tot een verbetering bij de uitvoering van de Participatiewet. : State Secretary for Social Affairs.

Van Der Veen R. (2019). Basic Income Experiments in the Netherlands?. *Basic Income Studies*, 14(1), pp.1-23.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Wilson N and McDaid S . (2021). The mental health effects of a Universal Basic Income: A synthesis of the evidence from previous pilots. *Social Science and Medicine*, 287(114374), pp.1-14.

Nijmegen

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). *Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot*. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Betkó J, Spierings N and Gesthuizen M; Scheepers P; (2019). The Who and the Why? Selection Bias in an Unconditional Basic Income Inspired Social Assistance Experiment. In: Delsen L, ed., *Empirical Research on an Unconditional Basic Income in Europe (Series title: Contributions to Economics)*. Cham, Switzerland: Springer, pp.139-170.

Betkó J, Spierings N and Gesthuizen M; Scheepers P;. (2020). *Rapportage experiment Participatiewet gemeente Nijmegen*. Nijmegen: Radboud Social Cultural Research, Afdeling Sociologie.

Bollain J, Groot L and Miller A; Schmidt E; Tahiraj E; Verlaat T; Yi G; (2019). A Variety of Experiments. In: Torry M, ed., *The Palgrave International Handbook of Basic Income.*: Palgrave Macmillan, Cham, pp.407-435.

de Boer H, Bolhaar J and Jongen E ; Zulkarnain A ;. (2020). *Evaluatie experimenten Participatiewet Effecten op de uitstroom naar werk*. Den Haag: Centraal Planbureau.

de Graaf R and van Gastel M W. (2020). Experimenten Participatiewet Procesevaluatie. Den Haag: ZonMw.

Europees Sociaal Fonds. (2020). Vertrouwen Werkt! gemeente wageningen: Eindrapportage. Wageningen: .

Groot L, Muffels R and Verlaat T;. (2019). Welfare states' social investment strategies and the emergence of Dutch experiments on a minimum income guarantee. *Social Policy and Society*, 18(2), pp.277-287.

Muffels R, Gielens E and Shawn V;. (2019). Job search, employment capabilities and well-being of people on welfare in the Dutch 'Participation Income' experiments. In: Delsen L, ed., *Empirical Research on an Unconditional Basic Income in Europe (Series title: Contribution To Economics)*. Cham, Switzerland: Springer International, pp.109-138.

van Ark T. (2020). Bijstandsexperimenten leiden tot een verbetering bij de uitvoering van de Participatiewet. : State Secretary for Social Affairs.

Van Der Veen R. (2019). Basic Income Experiments in the Netherlands?. *Basic Income Studies*, 14(1), pp.1-23.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Groningen

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Bollain J, Groot L and Miller A; Schmidt E; Tahiraj E; Verlaat T; Yi G;. (2019). A Variety of Experiments. In: Torry M, ed., *The Palgrave International Handbook of Basic Income*. : Palgrave Macmillan, Cham, pp.407-435.

de Boer H, Bolhaar J and Jongen E ; Zulkarnain A ;. (2020). *Evaluatie experimenten Participatiewet Effecten op de uitstroom naar werk*. Den Haag: Centraal Planbureau.

de Graaf R and van Gastel M W. (2020). *Experimenten Participatiewet Procesevaluatie*. Den Haag: ZonMw.

Edzes A, Rijnks R and Kloosterman K Venhorst V;. (2020). *Bijstand op Maat Beleidsrapport*. Groningen: Rijksuniversiteit.

Europees Sociaal Fonds. (2020). Vertrouwen Werkt! gemeente wageningen: Eindrapportage. Wageningen: .

Groot L, Muffels R and Verlaat T;. (2019). Welfare states' social investment strategies and the emergence of Dutch experiments on a minimum income guarantee. *Social Policy and Society*, 18(2), pp.277-287.

Muffels R, Gielens E and Shawn V;. (2019). Job search, employment capabilities and well-being of people on welfare in the Dutch 'Participation Income' experiments. In: Delsen L, ed., *Empirical Research on an Unconditional Basic Income in Europe (Series title: Contribution To Economics)*. Cham, Switzerland: Springer International, pp.109-138.

van Ark T. (2020). Bijstandsexperimenten leiden tot een verbetering bij de uitvoering van de Participatiewet. : State Secretary for Social Affairs.

Van Der Veen R. (2019). Basic Income Experiments in the Netherlands?. *Basic Income Studies*, 14(1), pp.1-23.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Wilson N and McDaid S . (2021). The mental health effects of a Universal Basic Income: A synthesis of the evidence from previous pilots. *Social Science and Medicine*, 287(114374), pp.1-14.

Deventer

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). *Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot*. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Bollain J, Groot L and Miller A; Schmidt E; Tahiraj E; Verlaat T; Yi G;. (2019). A Variety of Experiments. In: Torry M, ed., *The Palgrave International Handbook of Basic Income*. : Palgrave Macmillan, Cham, pp.407-435.

de Boer H, Bolhaar J and Jongen E ; Zulkarnain A ;. (2020). Evaluatie experimenten Participatiewet Effecten op de uitstroom naar werk. Den Haag: Centraal Planbureau.

de Graaf R and van Gastel M W. (2020). *Experimenten Participatiewet Procesevaluatie*. Den Haag: ZonMw.

Europees Sociaal Fonds. (2020). Vertrouwen Werkt! gemeente wageningen: Eindrapportage. Wageningen: .

Gramberg P and de Swart J . (2020). Wat werkt op weg naar werk? Eindrapport Experiment Participatiewet gemeente Deventer. : .

Groot L, Muffels R and Verlaat T;. (2019). Welfare states' social investment strategies and the emergence of Dutch experiments on a minimum income guarantee. *Social Policy and Society*, 18(2), pp.277-287.

Muffels R, Gielens E and Shawn V; (2019). Job search, employment capabilities and well-being of people on welfare in the Dutch 'Participation Income' experiments. In: Delsen L, ed., *Empirical Research on an Unconditional Basic Income in Europe (Series title: Contribution To Economics)*. Cham, Switzerland: Springer International, pp.109-138.

Van Der Veen R. (2019). Basic Income Experiments in the Netherlands?. *Basic Income Studies*, 14(1), pp.1-23.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Utrecht

Anon . (2018). ValueWalk: Ray Dalio: Primer On Universal Basic Income. Chatham: Newstex.

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). *Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot*. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Bollain J, Groot L and Miller A; Schmidt E; Tahiraj E; Verlaat T; Yi G;. (2019). A Variety of Experiments. In: Torry M, ed., *The Palgrave International Handbook of Basic Income.*: Palgrave Macmillan, Cham, pp.407-435.

Camporesi A T. (2018). Universal Basic Income based on evidence. *Politica y Sociedad*, 55(3), pp.851-871.

de Boer H, Bolhaar J and Jongen E ; Zulkarnain A ;. (2020). *Evaluatie experimenten Participatiewet Effecten op de uitstroom naar werk*. Den Haag: Centraal Planbureau.

de Graaf R and van Gastel M W. (2020). *Experimenten Participatiewet Procesevaluatie*. Den Haag: ZonMw.

Europees Sociaal Fonds. (2020). Vertrouwen Werkt! gemeente wageningen: Eindrapportage. Wageningen: .

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (2020). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Laurenson John. (2016). Money for Nothing?. Stanford Social Innovation Review, 14(1), pp.9-10.

Lowe C, Grosh M and George T; Gentilini U;. (2020). What Does It Take to Deliver a Universal Basic Income in Practice?. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*:, pp.217-235.

Neuwinger M. (2021). The revolution will not be randomized: Universal basic income, randomized controlled trials, and 'evidence-based' social policy. *Global Social Policy*, , pp.1-19.

Osterkamp R. (2017). Controversies over the unconditional basic income: Clarifying contributions of empirical research. *Sozialer Fortschritt*, 66(6), pp.451-461.

Standing G. (2021). Basic Income Pilots: Uses, Limitations and Design Principles. *Basic Income Studies*, 16(1), pp.75-99.

van Ark T. (2020). Bijstandsexperimenten leiden tot een verbetering bij de uitvoering van de Participatiewet. : State Secretary for Social Affairs.

Van Der Veen R. (2019). Basic Income Experiments in the Netherlands?. *Basic Income Studies*, 14(1), pp.1-23.

Verlaat T, de Kruijk M and Rosenkranz S; Groot L; Sanders M; van Dien K; Miller J;. (2020). Onderzoek Weten wat werkt: samen werken aan een betere bijstand: Eindrapport. Utrecht: University of Utrecht.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Wilson N and McDaid S . (2021). The mental health effects of a Universal Basic Income: A synthesis of the evidence from previous pilots. *Social Science and Medicine*, 287(114374), pp.1-14.

Wageningen

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). *Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot*. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Bollain J, Groot L and Miller A; Schmidt E; Tahiraj E; Verlaat T; Yi G;. (2019). A Variety of Experiments. In: Torry M, ed., *The Palgrave International Handbook of Basic Income.*: Palgrave Macmillan, Cham, pp.407-435.

de Boer H, Bolhaar J and Jongen E ; Zulkarnain A ;. (2020). Evaluatie experimenten Participatiewet Effecten op de uitstroom naar werk. Den Haag: Centraal Planbureau.

de Graaf R and van Gastel M W. (2020). *Experimenten Participatiewet Procesevaluatie*. Den Haag: ZonMw.

Europees Sociaal Fonds. (2020). Vertrouwen Werkt! gemeente wageningen: Eindrapportage. Wageningen: .

Groot L, Muffels R and Verlaat T;. (2019). Welfare states' social investment strategies and the emergence of Dutch experiments on a minimum income guarantee. *Social Policy and Society*, 18(2), pp.277-287.

Muffels R, Gielens E and Shawn V;. (2019). Job search, employment capabilities and well-being of people on welfare in the Dutch 'Participation Income' experiments. In: Delsen L, ed., *Empirical Research on an Unconditional Basic Income in Europe (Series title: Contribution To Economics)*. Cham, Switzerland: Springer International, pp.109-138.

van Ark T. (2020). Bijstandsexperimenten leiden tot een verbetering bij de uitvoering van de Participatiewet. : State Secretary for Social Affairs.

Van Der Veen R. (2019). Basic Income Experiments in the Netherlands?. *Basic Income Studies*, 14(1), pp.1-23.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Wilson N and McDaid S . (2021). The mental health effects of a Universal Basic Income: A synthesis of the evidence from previous pilots. *Social Science and Medicine*, 287(114374), pp.1-14.

Amsterdam

Anon . (2020). *Amsterdams Experiment met de Bijstand: T1 meting (2020). Factsheet oktober* 2020 . Amsterdam: Hogeschool van Amsterdam/Universiteit van Amsterdam.

Anon . (2020). Amsterdams Experiment met de Bijstand: Nulmeting (2018-2019). Amsterdam: Hogeschool van Amsterdam.

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). *Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot*. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Bos S, Elshout J and Portielje M ;. (2020). T1 rapportage kwalitatief Amsterdams Experiment met de Bijstand: ervaringen van bijstandsgerechtigden. Amsterdam: Hogeschool van Amsterdam.

Muffels R, Gielens E and Shawn V;. (2019). Job search, employment capabilities and well-being of people on welfare in the Dutch 'Participation Income' experiments. In: Delsen L, ed., *Empirical Research on an Unconditional Basic Income in Europe (Series title: Contribution To Economics)*. Cham, Switzerland: Springer International, pp.109-138.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Almere

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Tuynman M. (2018). Experimenteren met de bijstand: Pilotonderzoek experiment regelarme bijstand. Almere: Gemeente Almere.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Apeldoorn/Epe

Anon . (2020). Positive attention leads to faster outflow from assistance.:.

Anon . (n.d.). Self-driving and tailor-made: An experiment with trust and freedom of choice. : .

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M; (2019). *Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot*. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Groot L, Muffels R and Verlaat T;. (2019). Welfare states' social investment strategies and the emergence of Dutch experiments on a minimum income guarantee. *Social Policy and Society*, 18(2), pp.277-287.

Muffels R, Gielens E and Shawn V; (2019). Job search, employment capabilities and well-being of people on welfare in the Dutch 'Participation Income' experiments. In: Delsen L, ed., *Empirical Research on an Unconditional Basic Income in Europe (Series title: Contribution To Economics)*. Cham, Switzerland: Springer International, pp.109-138.

Muffels R, Blom-Stam K and van Wanrooij S;. (2020). *Zelf aan het stuur en op maat. Werkt het en waarom wel of niet?*. Tilburg: Tilburg University/ReflecT/Tranzo.

Munsters L. (n.d.). Experiment 'Zelf aan het stuur en op maat'. Apeldoorn: .

Tuynman M. (2018). Experimenteren met de bijstand: Pilotonderzoek experiment regelarme bijstand. Almere: Gemeente Almere.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Oss

Barclay C, McLachlan J and Paterson M ;. (2019). Exploring the practicalities of a basic income pilot. Dunfermline: Carnegie UK Trust.

Groot L, Muffels R and Verlaat T;. (2019). Welfare states' social investment strategies and the emergence of Dutch experiments on a minimum income guarantee. *Social Policy and Society*, 18(2), pp.277-287.

Muffels R, Gielens E and Shawn V;. (2019). Job search, employment capabilities and well-being of people on welfare in the Dutch 'Participation Income' experiments. In: Delsen L, ed., *Empirical Research on an Unconditional Basic Income in Europe (Series title: Contribution To Economics)*. Cham, Switzerland: Springer International, pp.109-138.

Muffels R, Blom-Stam K and van Wanrooij S;. (2020). *Vertrouwensexperiment Oss Zelf aan het stuur en op maat. Werkt het?* . Tilburg: Tilburg University/Reflect.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Experiments group 3: Recent US experiments Part 1

OpenResearch/Y-Combinator

Allegri G and Foschi R . (2021). Universal Basic Income as a Promoter of Real Freedom in a Digital Future. *World Futures*, 77(1), pp.1-22.

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Bidadanure J, Kline S and Moore C; Rainwater B; Thomas C; (2018). Basic Income In Cities: A guide to city experiments and pilot projects. Stanford: National League of Cities.

Conger K. (2016). *Y Combinator announces basic income pilot experiment in Oakland*. [online] AOL Inc.. Available at: function URL() { [native code] }.

Downes A and Lansley S. (2018). It's Basic Income: The Global Debate. Bristol: Policy Press.

Fingas J. (2016). Y Combinator basic income test makes up for jobs lost to tech. New York: AOL Inc..

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (202). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Hoynes H and Rothstein J . (2019). Universal Basic Income in the United States and Advanced Countries. *Annual Review of Economics*, 11, pp.929-958.

Kessler A. (2018). Inside View: A Universally Bad Idea. New York, N.Y.: Wall Street Journal.

Kotecki P. (2018). An ambitious basic income experiment started by a major Silicon Valley tech accelerator has been delayed. New York: Business Insider.

Kotecki P. (2018). Chicago could be the largest US city to launch a basic income pilot — here are the other major experiments around the world. New York: Business Insider.

Neuwinger M. (2021). The revolution will not be randomized: Universal basic income, randomized controlled trials, and 'evidence-based' social policy. *Global Social Policy*, , pp.1-19.

Newstex . (2017). ValueWalk: Is A Universal Basic Income A Good Idea?. Chatham: Newstex.

Rhodes E. (2020). *Basic Income Project Proposal: Overview for comments and feedback*. : http://www.openresearchlab.org/basic-income.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers, Policymakers, and Citizens: The Political Economy of the Decision to Have a UBI Experiment. : Palgrave Macmillan.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

My People Fund

Anon . (2016). Dolly Parton's My People Fund Serves Nearly 900 Families in First Distribution. New York: Business Wire.

Anon . (2016). Dollywood Foundation Announces Details for My People Fund. New York: Business Wire.

Anon . (2017). Final My People Fund Distribution Provides Families with \$5,000 Check. New York: Business Wire.

West S. (2017). *My People Fund Evaluation: Preliminary Findings*. Tennessee: The Dollywood Foundation.

West S. (2018). My People Fund Evaluation: Final Report. Tennessee: Dollywood Foundation.

Magnolia Mother's Trust

Bidadanure J, Kline S and Moore C; Rainwater B; Thomas C;. (2018). *Basic Income In Cities: A guide to city experiments and pilot projects*. Stanford: National League of Cities.

Covert Bryce. (2021). Cash-Strapped. The New Republic, 252(11), pp.4.

Davidson T. (2021). Peduto seeks approval for \$2.5M universal basic income program in Pittsburgh. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

Kotecki P. (2018). A basic income pilot in Mississippi will provide 15 black mothers with \$1,000 for free every month, and it could lead to a much bigger experiment. New York: Business Insider.

Magnolia Mother's Trust. (2020). *Magnolia Mother's Trust 2020 Evaluation Report*. Jackson, MS: The Magnolia Mother's Trust.

Springboard Opportunities. (n.d.). *The Magnolia Mother's Trust: The Invaluable Benefits of Investing in Black Women.* www.springboardto.org: Springboard Opportunities.

Baby's First Years

Anon . (n.d). Baby's First Years - Age 1 Brochure . Mitchigan: Baby's First Years.

Anon . (2021). Cheques and balances - Might the pandemic pave the way for a universal basic income?. London: The Economist Intelligence Unit N.A., Incorporated.

Anon . (n.d.). Baby's First Years - Age 1 Survey . Mitchigan: Baby's First Years.

Anon . (n.d). Baby's First Years - Advert . Mitchigan: Baby's First Years.

Baby's First Years. (n.d.). *Baby's First Years - Baseline Data Guide* . Mitchigan: https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-and-documentation.

Baby's Frist Years. (n.d). *Baby's First Years - Baseline Questionnaire*. Mitchigan: https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-and-documentation.

Bidadanure J, Kline S and Moore C; Rainwater B; Thomas C;. (2018). *Basic Income In Cities: A guide to city experiments and pilot projects*. Stanford: National League of Cities.

Baby's First Years. (n.d.). Baby's First Years Codebook Baseline . Mitchigan: https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-and-documentation.

Baby's First Years. (n.d.). Baby's First Years - Data and Documentation Page . [online] https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-and-documentation. Available at: function URL() { [native code] }.

Baby's First Years. (n.d). *Baby's First Years - Data Collection Page* . Mitchigan: https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-collection-1.

Baby's First Years. (n.d.). *Baby's First Years Gift Letter*. Mitchigan: https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-and-documentation.

Kimberly G Noble, MD and PhD; a Katherine Magnuson; PhD; b Lisa A. Gennetian; PhD; d Greg J. Duncan; PhD; e Hirokazu Yoshikawa; PhD; f Nathan A. Fox; PhD; g Sarah Halpern-Meekin; PhD;. (2021). Baby's First Years: Design of a Randomized Controlled Trial of Poverty Reduction in the United States. *Pediatrics*, 148(4), pp.e2020049702.

Baby's First Years. (n.d.). *Baby's First Years - Research Consent Form* . Mitchigan: https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-and-documentation.

Natalia M Rojas, Hirokazu Yoshikawa and Lisa Gennetian; Mayra Lemus Rangel; Samantha Melvin; Kimberly Noble; Greg Duncan; Katherine Magunson;. (2020). Exploring the experiences and dynamics of an unconditional cash transfer for low-income mothers: A mixed-methods study. *Journal of Children and Poverty*, , pp.1-21.

Baby's First Years. (n.d.). *Baby's First Years - Study Background Page*. Mitchigan: https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-and-documentation.

Baby's First Years. (n.d.). *Baby's First Years - Wave 1 Qualitative Guide* . Mitchigan: https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-and-documentation.

Baby's First Years. (n.d.). *Baby's First Years - Wave 2 Qualitative Guide*. Mitchigan: https://www.babysfirstyears.com/data-and-documentation.

SEED

Anon . (2019). A basic income experiment finds poor people spend money on necessities. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

Anonymous . (2021). Taking stock of Stockton. The Economist, 438(9236), pp.40.

Baker A C, Martin-West S and Samra S; Cusack M;. (2020). Mitigating loss of health insurance and means tested benefits in an unconditional cash transfer experiment: Implementation lessons from Stockton's guaranteed income pilot. *SSM - Population Health*, 11, pp.100578.

Bastagli F. (2020). Universal Basic Income and Work. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices.*: World Bank Group, pp.99-121.

Bendix A. (2019). A 29-year-old mayor is giving some of his city's poorest residents \$500 a month. Here's how he thinks basic income could work for the entire US.. New York: Business Insider.

Bendix A. (2020). Twitter billionaire Jack Dorsey just donated \$15 million to fund basic-income pilot projects in at least 9 US cities. New York: Business Insider.

Bendix A. (2020). Saint Paul, Minnesota, will give some residents \$500 per month for the next year and a half in a seminal basic-income pilot. New York: Business Insider.

Bendix Aria. (2020). A group of young people in Silicon Valley could get \$1,000 per month from the county government in a trial of basic income. New York: Business Insider.

Bendix A. (2021). Chicago just approved one of the US's largest basic-income pilots: \$500 monthly payments for 5,000 people. New York: Business Insider.

Bendix A. (2021). A California city gave some residents \$500 per month. After a year, their unemployment rate had dropped, while the control group's rose.. *Business Insider*, , pp..

Berfield S and Holder S . (2020). *A Radical Experiment In Financial Vaccination*. New York: Bloomberg Businessweek.

Bidadanure J, Kline S and Moore C; Rainwater B; Thomas C;. (2018). *Basic Income In Cities: A guide to city experiments and pilot projects*. Stanford: National League of Cities.

Cooke J. (2019). 'Basic Income' could help create an innovation nation. Edinburgh: MGN Ltd..

Beam A. (2019). Data shows how basic universal recipients spent free money. Toronto: St. Joseph Communications.

Davidson T. (2021). Peduto seeks approval for \$2.5M universal basic income program in Pittsburgh. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

de Guzman D. (2020). Jack Dorsey donates \$3 million to 15 cities to explore universal basic incomes, including Oakland. Chicago: SF Gate.

Dean G. (2021). Los Angeles is launching the US' biggest universal basic income pilot. The scheme will pay \$1,000 a month to 3,000 families.. New York: Business Insider.

Gentilini U and Grosh M . (202). UBI as Social Assistance: Comparative Models and Instruments. In: Gentilini U, Grosh M and Rigolini J; Yemtsov R;, ed., *Exploring Universal Basic Income: A Guide to Navigating Concepts, Evidence, and Practices*. Washington, DC: World Bank, pp.73-97.

Harrison D. (2020). Cities Experiment With Remedy for Poverty: Cash, No Strings Attached; Guaranteed income comes without work requirements; some worry about work disincentive, high cost. New York, N.Y.: Wall Street Journal.

Hoynes H and Rothstein J . (2019). Universal Basic Income in the United States and Advanced Countries. *Annual Review of Economics*, 11, pp.929-958.

Jackson K. (2019). Stockton's Basic Income Experiment: 40% Of The Money Is Unaccounted For. Miami: CE Think Tank Newswire.

Jackson K. (2020). Universal Basic Income — Just Another Welfare Program That Will Fail. Miami: CE Think Tank Newswire.

Kotecki P. (2018). The first major basic income trial in the US just announced how it plans to give away free money. New York: Business Insider.

Kotecki P. (2018). Chicago could be the largest US city to launch a basic income pilot — here are the other major experiments around the world. New York: Business Insider.

KTXL-TV Sacramento. (2018). *Stockton's Universal Basic Income Program Moves Forward*. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

Fitch M. (2021). Hartford to consider a universal basic income pilot program. Miami: CE Think Tank Newswire.

Prather S. (2020). Twitter CEO boosts St. Paul's guaranteed income program. Chicago: Star Tribune.

Rickert C. (2020). Madison to pilot 'guaranteed income' program with \$500,000 from Twitter CEO. Chicago: Wisconsin State Journal.

Schuster A. (2021). Chicago may hand \$500 monthly for a year to 5,000 low-income families. Miami: CE Think Tank Newswire.

Anon . (n.d.). Our Vision for SEED: A Discussion Paper. Stockton: stocktondemontration.org.

Anon . (2020). Stockton Economic Empowerment Demonstration Extended to January 2021: Nation's first mayor-led guaranteed income initiative secures funding for six additional months of a monthly guaranteed income of \$500 to selected recipients. New York: PR Newswire.

Rogers T R. (2020). Twitter billionaire Jack Dorsey just announced he will be funding a universal basic income experiment that could affect up to 7 million people. New York: Business Insider.

Thomhave K. (2021). Money for the People. *The Progressive*, 85(3), pp.41-44.

Anon . (2020). Twitter co-founder Jack Dorsey will fund a project to test universal basic income. Miami: CE Noticias Financieras.

Anon . (2021). The basic income experience in California. CE Noticias Financieras, , pp..

Anon . (2021). Universal Basic Income Hype; A ballyhooed study proves much less than advertised.. New York, N.Y.: Wall Street Journal.

Weller C. (2018). A California city is launching the first US experiment in basic income — meet the 27-year-old mayor behind it. New York: Business Insider.

West S, Castro Baker A and Samra S; Coltrera E; (n.d.). *Preliminary Analysis: SEED's First Year*. Stockton: SEED.

Westhill D. (2021). *Marin's Discriminatory 'Universal Income'*. New York, N.Y.: Marin Community Foundation.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers, Policymakers, and Citizens: The Political Economy of the Decision to Have a UBI Experiment. : Palgrave Macmillan.

Widerquist K. (2018). A Critical Analysis of Basic Income Experiments for Researchers Policymakers and Citizens: Current, Planned, and Proposed Experiments, 2014–Present. Cham: Palgrave Macmillan.

Widerquist K. (2021). Further reflections on basic income experiments. *Ethical Perspectives*, 28(1), pp.103-115.

Yin A. (2021). Guaranteed basic income is coming to Chicago with one of the nation's largest programs giving cash directly to residents in need. Chicago: Chicago Tribune.

Compton Pledge

Anon . (2021). Usio's Innovative Prepaid Card Solutions Powering "The Compton Pledge": Country's Largest Guaranteed Income Program Utilizing Usio Prepaid Cards as Preferred Disbursement Vehicle. New York: Globe Newswire.

Anon . (2021). Press Release: Usio's Innovative Prepaid Card Solutions Powering "The Compton Pledge". New York: Dow Jones.

Bendix A. (2020). Twitter billionaire Jack Dorsey just donated \$15 million to fund basic-income pilot projects in at least 9 US cities. New York: Business Insider.

Bendix A. (2021). Chicago just approved one of the US's largest basic-income pilots: \$500 monthly payments for 5,000 people. New York: Business Insider.

Compton Mayor. (2020). Compton Mayor Aja Brown to launch Compton Pledge Guaranteed Income Initiative [press release]. Compton: Compton Mayor.

Compton Mayor. (2021). Compton pledge delivers \$1 million to residents 800 families are now receiving regular guaranteed income payments . Compton: Press release.

de Guzman D. (2020). Jack Dorsey donates \$3 million to 15 cities to explore universal basic incomes, including Oakland. Chicago: SF Gate.

Fund for Guaranteed Income. (2020). Compton Pledge Factsheet . Compton: FGI.

Vesoulis A and Abrams A. (2021). The free-money experiment. *Time*, 198(13/14), pp.92.

People's Prosperity St Paul

Bendix A. (2020). Twitter billionaire Jack Dorsey just donated \$15 million to fund basic-income pilot projects in at least 9 US cities. New York: Business Insider.

Bendix A. (2020). Saint Paul, Minnesota, will give some residents \$500 per month for the next year and a half in a seminal basic-income pilot. New York: Business Insider.

City of St Paul. (2021). About the People's Prosperity Guaranteed Income Pilot. St Paul: https://www.stpaul.gov/departments/financial-empowerment/peoples-prosperity-guaranteed-income-pilot.

Nelson E. (2020). St. Paul will use CARES Act money for guaranteed income experiment. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

Nelson E. (2020). Up to 150 St. Paul families could get \$500 a month, under Mayor Carter's guaranteed income program. Chicago: Star Tribune.

Office of Financial Empowerment. (2021). *How the City of Saint Paul Established a Guaranteed Income Pilot 2021*. City of Saint Paul: Office of Financial Empowerment.

Prather S. (2020). Twitter CEO boosts St. Paul's guaranteed income program. Chicago: Star Tribune.

Richmond Resilience Initiative

Bendix A. (2020). Twitter billionaire Jack Dorsey just donated \$15 million to fund basic-income pilot projects in at least 9 US cities. New York: Business Insider.

de Guzman D. (2020). Jack Dorsey donates \$3 million to 15 cities to explore universal basic incomes, including Oakland. Chicago: SF Gate.

Richmond Resilience. (). Press Release - Richmond . Richmond: http://richmondvaannouncements.blogspot.com/2020/10/stoney-administration-to-launch.html.

Richmond Resilience. (2021). *3rd Quarter Report*. Richmond: https://www.rva.gov/sites/default/files/2021-12/Final_3QReport.pdf.

Richmond Resilience. (2021). *Webpage*. Richmond: https://www.rva.gov/community-wealth-building/richmond-resilience-initiative.

Experiments group 4: Recent US experiments Part 2

Oakland Resilient Families

de Guzman D. (2020). Jack Dorsey donates \$3 million to 15 cities to explore universal basic incomes, including Oakland. Chicago: SF Gate.

Gentilini U. (2017). $Universal\ basic\ income\ pilots$: Setting expectations right. Washington: The Brookings Institution.

McLean T. (2021). Oakland debuted its universal income program. Here's who could get the money.. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

Oakland Resilient Families. (2021). *Oakland Resilient Families About Page* . Oakland: https://oaklandresilientfamilies.org/about.

Oakland Resilient Families. (202). Oakland Resilient Families Design Page. Oakland: https://oaklandresilientfamilies.org/design.

Oakland Resilient Families. (2021). *Oakland Resilient Families FAQ page*. Oakland: https://oaklandresilientfamilies.org/faqs-phase2.

Oakland Resilient Families. (202). *Oakland Resilient Families Home Page*. Oakland: https://oaklandresilientfamilies.org/.

Abundant Birth Project (ABP).

Expecting Justice. (2020). *The Abundant Birth Project - General Grant Report* 2020. San Fransisco: Expecting Justice.

Expecting Justice. (2020). *Abundant Birth Project Website* . San Francisco: https://www.expectingjustice.org/abundant-birth-project/.

McLean T. (2020). SF announces pilot program to provide basic income to pregnant Black and Pacific Islander women. San Fransisco: TCA Regional News.

SF Guaranteed Income Pilot for Artists

McLean T. (2021). SF launched a guaranteed income program for artists. Here's who qualifies.. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

Yerba Buena Center for the Arts. (2021). San Francisco Guaranteed Income Pilot for Artists, Powered by YBCA, Learning and Insight from Design to Launch . San Francisco: Yerba Buena Center for the Arts.

GIVE

City of Gary. (2021). G.I.V.E. Gary Website . Gary: https://givegary.org/.

Paterson

Paterson Guaranteed Income Pilot Program. (2021). *Website*. Paterson: https://www.patersonnj.gov/department/division.php?structureid=148.

Saulsbery G. (2021). Paterson launches guaranteed income pilot with Newark fintech MoCaFi. New Brunswick: NJBIZ.

BIG: LEAP

City of Los Angeles. (2021). BIG:LEAP - Basic Income Guaranteed: Los Angeles Economic Assistance Pilot Page . : https://bigleap.lacity.org/.

City of Los Angeles. (2021). BIG: LEAP - Eligibility Page. : https://bigleap.lacity.org/eligibility.

City of Los Angeles. (2021). *BIG:LEAP Frequently Asked Questions and Answers*.: https://bigleap.lacity.org/faq.

Crowe C. (2021). 3 key investments in LA Mayor Garcetti's proposed 'justice budget'. Washington: Smart Cities Dive.

de Guzman D. (2020). Jack Dorsey donates \$3 million to 15 cities to explore universal basic incomes, including Oakland. Chicago: SF Gate.

Dean G. (2021). Los Angeles is launching the US' biggest universal basic income pilot. The scheme will pay \$1,000 a month to 3,000 families.. New York: Business Insider.

Long Beach

California State University. (2021). City of Long Beach's Guaranteed Basic Income (GBI) program . Long Beach: CSULB.

Anon . (2021). California State University Long Beach: CSULB to gauge economic, social impacts of Guaranteed Basic Income pilot in Long Beach. Melbourne: News Bites - Private Companies.

Anon . (2021). CSULB PARTNERS WITH CITY ON GUARANTEED INCOME PILOT PROGRAM. Melbourne: News Bites - Private Companies.

de Guzman D. (2020). Jack Dorsey donates \$3 million to 15 cities to explore universal basic incomes, including Oakland. Chicago: SF Gate.

Old Fourth Ward

Capelouto J D. (2020). Andrew Yang backs possible guaranteed income pilot program in Atlanta. Chicago: TCA Regional News.

de Guzman D. (2020). Jack Dorsey donates \$3 million to 15 cities to explore universal basic incomes, including Oakland. Chicago: SF Gate.

Economic Security Task Force. (2021). The Fierce Urgency of Now - Advancing Economic Security and Shared Prosperity in Atlanta . Atlanta, US: ESTF.